1

va_bill6.060623 07/01/2024

endor Name / Vendor #	PO#	Description	PO Amt	Check Amt	Check#
INPOSTED CHECKS					
BLE SHRED BUSINESS PRODUCTS LLC/ 6913	25-0393 25-0487	SCH ADMIN-OTH SERVICE MISCELLANEOUS PURCHASED	225.00 30.00	225.00 30.00	100579 100639
SCD/ 4558	25-0430	SCH ADMIN-OTH OBJECTS	105.00	105.00	100581
SCD/ 4904	25-0684	IMPROV INSTR-OTH OBJECTS	150.00	150.00	100580
&H PHOTO/ 6282	25-0254	GUIDANCE-SUPPLIES	245.11	245.11	100552
ARBARA A. TESTIN, LLC/ 8751	25-0495	GEN ADMIN-OTH PROF SERV	1,225.00	1,225.00	100641
OARD OFFICE/ 1205	NAP Check NAP Check NAP Check NAP Check NAP Check NAP Check	Lisa Hogan Lindsay Petric Sharon Shortt Patrick Higgins Maryrose Neri Rose Dunn	250.00 250.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00	250.00 250.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00	100545 100546 100547 100548 100549 100550
RAINPOP LLC/ 7460	25-0560	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	3,794.84	3,794.84	100582
SN SPORTS LLC/ 4723	25-0276	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	417.76	417.76	100635
SN SPORTS, LLC/ 1342	25-0259 25-0321	ATHLETICS-SUPPLIES ATHLETICS-SUPPLIES	55.07 1,153.29	1,208.36	100553
ABLEVISION LIGHTPATH, INC./ 8745	25-0136	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	4,653.28	4,653.28	100554
DW GOVERNMENT, INC./ 5750	25-0491	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	1,653.75	1,653.75	100555
HANGEBRIDGE MEDICAL ASSOCIATES PA/ 9194	25-0642	HEALTH-PUR PROF/TECH	3,333.34	3,333.34	100583
HIEF ARCHITECT, INC./ 7894	25-0162	REG PROG UND-TEXTBOOKS	1,170.00	1,170.00	100584
HILDREN'S SPECIALIZED HOSPITAL/ 9441	25-0622	HEALTH-OTH PUR PROF SERV	717.60	717.60	100585
OACH/ 9110	25-0660 25-0422	LAKERS SPORTS CLUB-SUPPL Mary Peischl	114.06 143.60	114.06 143.60	100586 100642
ODEHS, INC/ 9492	25-0675	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	4,530.00	4,530.00	100578
USTODIAN & MAINT. REIMB/ 1361	25-0774	Shemar Gray	160.00	160.00	100587
AANJ, INC./ 5203	25-0770	ATHLETICS-OTHER OBJECTS	125.00	125.00	100588
AILY RECORD - NJ PRESS MEDIA SOLUTIONS/ 5595	25-0643	CENTRAL SERV-OTH OBJECTS	43.58	43.58	100556
AN BUCHANAN/ 9102	25-0683 25-0712	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	370.00 370.00	740.00	100589
ECKER INC. SCHOOL FIX/ 8920	24-1652 25-0611	REQ MAINT-SUPPLIES REQ MAINT-SUPPLIES	183.46 1,523.75	1,707.21	100590

va_bill6.060623 07/01/2024

	d	h	
4	1	ľ	
•	d	þ	90

Vendor Name / Vendor #	PO#	Description	PO Amt	Check Amt	Check#
UNPOSTED CHECKS					
DESTINATION IMAGINATION, INC./ 8226	24-1618	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	5,500.00	5,500.00	100591
DIXON BROTHERS INC./ 8741	25-0490	CUSTODIAL-NATURAL GAS	461.18	461.18	100557
EBSCO INFORMATION SERVICES/ 1735	25-0281	MEDIA-SUPPLIES	409.98	409.98	100643
EDMENTUM, INC./ 9426	25-0677	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	333.00	333.00	100644
EDUCATIONAL AUDIOLOGY RESOURCES, LLC/ 9471	25-0782	HEALTH-OTH PUR PROF SERV	650.00	650.00	100558
EPS OPERATIONS LLC/ 9461	25-0333	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	271.10	271.10	100559
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, LLC - FAIRFIELD NJ/ 9482	25-0480	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	698.00	698.00	100560
FRONTLINE TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LLC/ 9272	25-0779	IT-OTH PUR SERVICES	17,344.00	17,344.00	100637
GOPHER SPORTS EQUIPMENT/ 1968	25-0227	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	374.08	374.08	100561
GRACENOTES LLC/ 9177	25-0703	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	405.90	405.90	100592
HYPE SOCKS, LLC/ 9270	25-0347	ATHLETICS-SUPPLIES	512.81	512.81	100562
MPACT APPLICATIONS, INC/ 8503	25-0515	ATHLETICS-OTHER OBJECTS	765.00	765.00	100593
VONNE CIRESI/ 9293	25-0559	Ivonne Ciresi	576.50	576.50	100594
CP&L/ 2181	25-0657	CUSTODIAL-ELECTRICITY	10,819.35	10,819.35	100645
IIMMY J. HEDRICK/ 9491	25-0689 25-0692	HEALTH-OTH PUR PROF SERV HEALTH-OTH PUR PROF SERV	58.00 58.00	116.00	100640
(ARG ENTERPRISES/ 5493	25-0790	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	495.00	495.00	100646
KELVIN LP/ 6827	25-0163	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	183.40	183.40	100563
AKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS/ 1345	25-0549	RESOURCE RM-SUPPLIES	91.94	91.94	100595
OWE'S COMPANIES INC./ 9498	25-0809	SCH ADMIN-SUPPLIES	653.85	653.85	100596
MAA AMERICAN MATH COMPETITIONS/ 4788	25-0806	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	466.00	466.00	100647
MAKE MUSIC, INC./ 7684	25-0704	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	2,698.22	2,698.22	100597
ICI COMM SERVICE/ 9169	25-0825	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	29.66	29.66	100648
MCSSADA INC/ 8398	25-0761	ATHLETICS-OTHER OBJECTS	3,500.00	3,500.00	100598
METHFESSEL & WERBEL PA/ 8944	25-0734	GEN ADMIN-LEGAL	1,072.00	1,072.00	100599
METROGRAPHICS PRINTING & COMPUTER SERVICES, NC./ 9481	25-0439	LAKERS SPORTS CLUB-SUPPL	174.00	174.00	100649
MFAC, LLC/ 5605	25-0504	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	269.00	269.00	100650
/ICHAEL CALI/ 9473	25-0376	ATHLETICS-OTHER OBJECTS	150.00	150.00	100618
MOORE CONTROL EXTERMINATING CO/ 9052	25-0410	GROUNDS-CLN/REPAIR/MNT	258.49	258.49	100564
Run on 10/01/2024 at 01:38:16 PM					Pa

1

va_bill6.060623 07/01/2024

endor Name / Vendor #	PO#	Description	PO Amt	Check Amt	Check#
NPOSTED CHECKS					
ORRIS AREA CURRICULUM NETWORK/ 2562	25-0823	INSTR TRAIN-OTH OBJECTS	550.00	550.00	100651
OUNT FREEDOM PRINTING/ 7960	25-0625	GUIDANCE-SUPPLIES	118.00	118.00	100602
OUNTAIN LAKES BD-CAFE ACCT/ 7019	25-0437	SCH ADMIN-OTH SERVICE	1,457.09	1,457.09	100603
J. NATURAL GAS CO./ 2592	25-0485	CUSTODIAL-NATURAL GAS	5,307.52	5,307.52	100566
ASCO/ 2591	25-0385	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	273.30	273.30	100567
EW JERSEY HILLS MEDIA GROUP, INC/ 9327	25-0644	CENTRAL SERV-OTH OBJECTS	162.36	162.36	100652
EWEGG BUSINESS INC./ 8608	25-0576	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	765.03	765.03	100653
JASBO/ 2712	25-0591	CENTRAL SERV-OTH OBJECTS	1,250.00	1,250.00	100604
JECC, INC./ 2633	25-0821	INSTR TRAIN-PUR PROF SVC	240.00	240.00	100654
JPSA/ 4331	25-0691 25-0466	INSTR TRAIN-TRAVEL SCH ADMIN-OTH OBJECTS	500.00 890.00	1,390.00	100605
JSBGA/ 8253	25-0728	GROUNDS-OTHER OBJECTS	400.00	400.00	100568
JSCHOOLJOBS.COM, INC./ 8535	25-0730	GEN ADMIN-MISC PUR SERVI	2,000.00	2,000.00	100606
DOWD TRANSPORTATION/ 8993	25-0645 25-0639	TRANSP-CONTR H/S VENDORS TRANSP-CONTR OTH H/S	10,152.00 275.00	10,427.00	100607
TICON INC./ 4359	25-0171 22-1452	HEALTH-SUPPLIES AUD IMP-SUPPLIES	639.99 539.99	639.99 539.99	100569 100608
ATRICIA FILIACI/ 9290	25-0742 25-0484	HEALTH-OTH PUR PROF SERV HEALTH-OTH PUR PROF SERV	700.00 700.00	700.00 700.00	100570 100655
AUL O. STANZIALE/ 9284	25-0755	GROUNDS-OTHER OBJECTS	230.00	230.00	100601
TSCO EDUCATION, LLC/ 9185	25-0170	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	957.00	957.00	100609
OMPTONIAN FOOD SERVICE/ 6640	24-0985	CAFE-COST OF SALES	2,218.91	2,218.91	100610
DWERSCHOOL GROUP LLC/ 7351	25-0669	GUIDANCE-OTH OBJECTS	5,025.10	5,025.10	100656
RINCIPALS/SUPERVISORS/DIRECTORS/ 2798	25-0411	Erik Carlson	1,469.82	1,469.82	100611
RO-ED, INC/ 2937	25-0548	CST-SUPPLIES	236.00	236.00	100612
TCFAST.COM/ 8802	25-0539	SCH ADMIN-OTH SERVICE	50.00	50.00	100657
UADIENT LEASING USA, INC/ 9408	25-0792	MISCELLANEOUS PURCHASED	461.51	461.51	100613
EADY REFRESH BY NESTLE/ 2881	25-0493 25-0392 25-0392	MISCELLANEOUS PURCHASED SCH ADMIN-OTH SERVICE SCH ADMIN-OTH SERVICE	158.86 10.98 98.91	169.84 98.91	100571 100614

va_bill6.060623 07/01/2024

Check Date is from 09/10/2024 to 09/30/2024

1

Vendor Name / Vendor #	PO#	Description	PO Amt	Check Amt	Check#
UNPOSTED CHECKS					-
REALLY GOOD STUFF, INC./ 6507	25-0130 25-0189	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	84.95 190.90	275.85	100572
REED ACADEMY/ 9298	25-0316	TUIT TO PRIV SCH INSTATE	14,291.64	14,291.64	100615
RICHARD KLEINMANN MD, LLC/ 8992	25-0534	HEALTH-OTH PUR PROF SERV	3,000.00	3,000.00	100616
RIDDELL ALL AMERICAN SPORTS CORP./ 7354	25-0531	ATHLETICS-SERVICES	2,770.84	2,770.84	100617
SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY, INC./ 4861	25-0433	HEALTH-SUPPLIES	102.83	102.83	100619
SECRETARIES/ 3087	25-0758 25-0759 25-0843	DANA WALTER LINDSAY PETRIC Sharon Shortt	29.95 17.87 97.38	29.95 17.87 97.38	100620 100621 100658
SHARPS COMPLIANCE OF TEXAS, LLC/ 9486	25-0655	HEALTH-OTH OBJECTS	356.60	356.60	100573
STUKENT, INC/ 9264	25-0351	REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	1,600.00	1,600.00	100622
SUPER DUPER PUBLICATIONS, CORP/ 3297	25-0551	SPEECH/OT/PT-SUPPLIES	109.90	109.90	100623
T-MOBILE/ 9239	25-0139	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	20.00	20.00	100575
TEACHER/ 3320	25-0618 25-0714 25-0717 25-0720 25-0763 25-0698 25-0732 25-0744 25-0791	NICOLE OLEARCHIK Erica Ebersole Erik Lih Kelly Bogucz SP ED HOME INSTR-TRAVEL TERESA FIORINA MICHAEL HOLLICK RAYMOND SEARLES ZORICA ALCOTT	458.70 69.99 59.88 168.48 3.85 63.98 2,627.75 50.96 67.52	458.70 69.99 59.88 168.48 3.85 63.98 2,627.75 50.96 67.52	100624 100625 100626 100627 100628 100629 100630 100631 100632
THINK SOCIAL PUBLISHING, INC./ 7923	25-0492	HEALTH-SUPPLIES	207.82	207.82	100574
THOMAS P. SULLIVAN/ 9452 TIME FOR KIDS/ 5192	25-0738 25-0271	CAFE-OTHER SERVICES REG PROG UND-SUPPLIES	7,500.00 825.00	7,500.00 825.00	100600 100659
TREASURER - STATE OF NEW JERSEY/ 8048	25-0749 25-0795	GROUNDS-OTHER OBJECTS GROUNDS-OTHER OBJECTS	80.00 80.00	80.00 80.00	100551 100565
UNITED BUSINESS SYSTEMS/ 7754	25-0543	IT-SUPPLIES	1,250.00	1,250.00	100633
UNITED RENTALS (N.A.), INC./ 5134	24-1855	REQ MAINT-CLN/REPAIR/MNT	543.18	543.18	100634
USI INSURANCE SERVICES LLC/ 8849	25-0837 25-0858	GEN ADMIN-MISC PUR SERVI GEN ADMIN-MISC PUR SERVI	2,520.00 41,158.00	2,520.00 41,158.00	100638 100660
VARSITY BRANDS HOLDING CO., INC./ 9364	25-0659	ATHLETICS-SUPPLIES	120.30	120.30	100661

1

va_bill6.060623 07/01/2024

Vendor Name / Vendor #	PO#	Description	PO Amt	Check Amt	Check#
UNPOSTED CHECKS					
VERIZON/ 9188	25-0137	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	576.70	576.70	100576
VHS, INC./ 9428	25-0509	REG PROG UND-OTH SERVICE	2,550.00	2,550.00	100577
VISUAL COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC/ 9304	25-0662	SCH ADMIN-SUPPLIES	2,450.55	2,450.55	100636
			Total for Unposted Checks	201,013.84	

va_bill6.060623 07/01/2024

Check Date is from 09/10/2024 to 09/30/2024



Resolution that the list of claims for goods received and services rendered and certified to be correct by the Business Administrator,						Run on 10/01/2024 at 01:38:16 PM	
be approved for	r <u>payment</u> a	nd further that	the Secretary's and I	Treasurer's financial reports b	e accepted as filed.		
	Fund	Sub Fund	Computer Checks	Computer Checks Non/AP	Hand Checks	Hand Checks Non/AP	Total Checks
	10	10		\$1,300.00			\$1,300.00
	10	11	\$185,900.32				\$185,900.32
	10	13	\$3,086.45				\$3,086.45
	Fund 10	TOTAL	\$188,986.77	\$1,300.00			\$190,286.77
	20	20	\$1,008.16				\$1,008.16
	60	60	\$9,718.91				\$9,718.91
	GRAND	TOTAL	\$199,713.84	\$1,300.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$201,013.84

Gross Payroll

No Gross Payroll to approve

\$0.00 Total Bills to be Approved \$201,013.84

0	aha	al D	mair		Adm	inic	strato
וכ	LIIO	ULD	usii	1622	Aum	11112	suatu

MOUNTAIN LAKES **BOARD OF EDUCATION**

Students 5512/Page 1 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

5512 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

 \mathbf{M}

Table of Contents

Section	Section Title								
A.	Prohibiting Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying								
B.	Definition of Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying								
C.	Student Behavior								
D.	Consequences and Remedial Actions								
E.	Reporting Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying								
F.	Anti-Bullying Coordinator, Anti-Bullying Specialist, and School Safety/School Climate Team(s)								
G.	Investigating Allegations of Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying								
Н.	Responding to Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying								
I.	Reprisal or Retaliation								
J.	False Accusations of Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying								
K.	Additional Policy Requirements								
L.	Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying Training and Prevention Programs								
M.	Reports to Board of Education and New Jersey Department of Education								
N.	School and District Grading Requirements								
O.	Reports to Law Enforcement								
P.	Collective Bargaining Agreements and Individual Contracts								



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 2 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

Q. Students with Disabilities

A. Prohibiting Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying

The Board of Education prohibits acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying of a student. The Board has determined that a safe and civil environment in school is necessary for students to learn and achieve high academic standards; harassment, intimidation, or bullying, like other disruptive or violent behaviors, is conduct that disrupts both a student's ability to learn and a school's ability to educate its students in a safe and disciplined environment. Since students learn by example, school administrators, faculty, staff, and volunteers should be commended for demonstrating appropriate behavior, treating others with civility and respect, and refusing to tolerate harassment, intimidation, or bullying.

For the purposes of this Policy, the term "parent," pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-1.3, means the natural parent(s); adoptive parent(s); legal guardian(s); resource family parent(s); or parent surrogate(s) of a student. When parents are separated or divorced, "parent" means the person or agency which has legal custody of the student, as well as the natural or adoptive parent(s) of the student, provided parental rights have not been terminated by a court of appropriate jurisdiction.

B. Definition of Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying

"Harassment, intimidation, or bullying" means any gesture, any written, verbal or physical act, or any electronic communication, as defined in N.J.S.A. 18A:37-14, whether it be a single incident or a series of incidents that:

- 1. Is reasonably perceived as being motivated by either any actual or perceived characteristic, such as race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression, or a mental, physical or sensory disability, or by any other distinguishing characteristic;
- 2. Takes place on school property, at any school-sponsored function, on a school bus, or off school grounds, as provided for in N.J.S.A. 18A:37-15.3;
- 3. Substantially disrupts or interferes with the orderly operation of the school or the rights of other students; and that



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 3 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

- a. A reasonable person should know, under the circumstances, that the act(s) will have the effect of physically or emotionally harming a student or damaging the student's property, or placing a student in reasonable fear of physical or emotional harm to their person or damage to their property; or
- b. Has the effect of insulting or demeaning any student or group of students; or
- c. Creates a hostile educational environment for the student by interfering with a student's education or by severely or pervasively causing physical or emotional harm to the student.

The Board recognizes that bullying is unwanted, aggressive behavior that may involve a real or perceived power imbalance. Recognizing "a real or perceived power imbalance" may assist school officials in identifying harassment, intimidation, or bullying within the context and relative positions of the alleged aggressor and target.

"Electronic communication" means a communication transmitted by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, cellular phone, computer, or remotely activating paging device (N.J.A.C. 6A:16-1.3).

In accordance with the Board of Education's Code of Student Conduct and this Policy, all acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying that occur off school grounds, such as "cyber-bullying" (e.g., the use of electronic means to harass, intimidate, or bully) is addressed in this Policy.

C. Student Behavior

The Board of Education expects students to conduct themselves in keeping with their levels of development, maturity, and demonstrated capabilities, with a proper regard for the rights and welfare of other students and school staff, the educational purpose underlying all school activities and the care of school facilities and equipment, consistent with the Code of Student Conduct.

The Board believes that standards for student behavior must be set cooperatively through interaction among the parents and other community representatives, school administrators, school employees, school volunteers, and students of the school district, producing an atmosphere that encourages students to grow in self-discipline. The development of this atmosphere requires respect for self and



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 4 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

others, as well as for school district and community property on the part of students, staff, and community members.

Students are expected to behave in a way that creates a supportive learning environment. The Board believes the best discipline is self-imposed, and that it is the responsibility of staff to use instances of violations of the Code of Student Conduct as opportunities for helping students learn to assume and accept responsibility for their behavior and the consequences of their behavior. Staff members who interact with students shall apply best practices designed to prevent student conduct problems and foster students' abilities to grow in self-discipline.

The Board expects students will act in accordance with the student behavioral expectations and standards regarding harassment, intimidation, or bullying, including:

- 1. Student responsibilities (e.g., requirements for students to conform to reasonable standards of socially accepted behavior; respect the person, property, and rights of others; obey constituted authority; and respond to those who hold that authority);
- 2. Appropriate recognition for positive reinforcement for good conduct, self-discipline, and good citizenship;
- 3. Student rights; and
- 4. Sanctions and due process for violations of the Code of Student Conduct.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:37-15(a) and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.1(a)1, the district has involved a broad-base of school and community members, including parents, school employees, volunteers, students, and community representatives, in the development of this Policy.

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.1, the Board developed guidelines for student conduct, taking into consideration the nature of the behavior; the nature of the student's disability, if any and to the extent relevant; the developmental ages of students; severity of the offenses and students' histories of inappropriate behaviors; and the mission and physical facilities of the individual school(s) in the district. This Policy requires all students in the district to adhere to the rules established by the school district and to submit to the remedial and consequential measures that are appropriately assigned for infractions of these rules.



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 5 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.1, the Superintendent shall annually provide to students and their parents the rules of the district regarding student conduct. Provisions shall be made for informing parents whose primary language is other than English.

The district prohibits active or passive support for acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying. The school district will support students who:

- 1. Walk away from acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying when they see them;
- 2. Constructively attempt to stop acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying;
- 3. Provide support to students who have been subjected to harassment, intimidation, or bullying; and
- 4. Report acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying to the designated school staff member.

D. Consequences and Remedial Actions

The Board of Education requires its school administrators to implement procedures that ensure both the appropriate consequences and remedial responses for students who commit one or more acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying, consistent with the Code of Student Conduct, and the consequences and remedial responses for staff members who commit one or more acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying.

In every incident found to be harassment, intimidation, or bullying, the school Principal, in consultation with appropriate school staff, may apply disciplinary consequences and/or remedial actions, such as the provision of counseling, behavioral interventions, or other measures.

Appropriate consequences and remedial actions are those that are graded according to the severity of the offenses; consider the developmental ages of the student offenders; the nature of the student's disability, if any and to the extent relevant; and students' histories of inappropriate behaviors, per the Code of Student Conduct and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.



MOUNTAIN LAKES **BOARD OF EDUCATION**

Students 5512/Page 6 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

The following factors, at a minimum, shall be given full consideration by the school administrators in the implementation of appropriate consequences and remedial measures for each act of harassment, intimidation, or bullying by students.

Factors for Determining Consequences

- Age, disability (if any and to the extent relevant), developmental
 and maturity levels of the parties involved and their relationship to
 the school district;
- Degrees of harm;
- Surrounding circumstances;
- Nature and severity of the behaviors;
- Incidences of past or continuing patterns of behavior;
- Relationships between the parties involved; and
- Context in which the alleged incidences occurred.

Factors for Determining Remedial Measures

Personal:

- Life skill deficiencies;
- Social relationships;
- Strengths;
- Talents;
- Traits;
- Interests:
- Hobbies;
- Extra-curricular activities;
- Classroom participation;
- Academic performance;
- Relationship to peers; and
- Relationship between student/family and the school district.

Environmental:

- School culture:
- School climate;
- Student-staff relationships and staff behavior toward the student;
- General staff management of classrooms or other educational environments;



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 7 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

- Staff ability to prevent and manage difficult or inflammatory situations;
- Availability of programs to address student behavior;
- Social-emotional and behavioral supports:
- Social relationships;
- Community activities;
- Neighborhood situation; and
- Family situation.

Examples of Consequences and Remedial Measures

The consequences and remedial measures may include, but are not limited to, the examples listed below:

Examples of Consequences:

- Admonishment:
- Temporary removal from the classroom (any removal of .5 days or more must be reported in the Student Safety Data System);
- Deprivation of privileges;
- Classroom or administrative detention;
- Referral to disciplinarian;
- In-school suspension during the school week or the weekend;
- Out-of-school suspension (short-term or long-term);
- Reports to law enforcement or other legal action;
- Expulsion; and
- Bans from receiving certain services, participating in schooldistrict-sponsored programs or being in school buildings or on school grounds.

Examples of Remedial Measures

Personal:

- Restitution and restoration;
- Peer support group;
- Recommendations of a student behavior or ethics council:
- Corrective instruction or other relevant learning or service experience;



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 8 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

- Supportive student interventions, including participation of the Intervention and Referral Services Team, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-8;
- Behavioral assessment or evaluation, including, but not limited to, a referral to the Child Study Team, as appropriate;
- Behavioral management plan, with benchmarks that are closely monitored;
- Assignment of leadership responsibilities (e.g., hallway or bus monitor);
- Involvement of school "disciplinarian;"
- Student counseling;
- Parent conferences;
- Alternative placements (e.g., alternative education programs);
- Student treatment; and
- Student therapy.

Environmental (Classroom, School Building, or School District):

- School and community surveys or other strategies for determining the conditions contributing to HIB;
- School culture change and school climate improvement;
- Adoption of research-based, systemic bullying prevention programs;
- School policy and procedures revisions;
- Modifications of schedules;
- Adjustments in hallway traffic;
- Modifications in student routes or patterns traveling to and from school;
- Supervision of student before and after school, including school transportation;
- Targeted use of monitors (e.g., hallway, cafeteria, locker room, playground, school perimeter, bus);
- Teacher aides:
- Small or large group presentations for fully addressing the behaviors and the responses to the behaviors;
- General professional development programs for certificated and non-certificated staff;
- Professional development plans for involved staff;
- Disciplinary action for school staff who contributed to the problem;



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 9 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

- Supportive institutional interventions, including participation of the Intervention and Referral Services Team, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-8;
- Parent conferences;
- Family counseling;
- Involvement of parent-teacher organizations;
- Involvement of community-based organizations;
- Development of a general bullying response plan;
- Recommendations of a student behavior or ethics council;
- Peer support groups;
- Alternative placements (e.g., alternative education programs);
- School transfers; and
- Law enforcement (e.g., safe schools resource officer, juvenile officer) involvement or other legal action.

Consequences and appropriate remedial actions for a student or staff member who commits one or more acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying may range from positive behavioral interventions up to and including suspension or expulsion of students, as set forth in the Board's approved Code of Student Conduct, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.1.

The Principal, in consultation with appropriate school staff, shall develop an individual student intervention plan when a student is found to be an offender in three harassment, intimidation, or bullying incidents and each subsequent incident occurring within one school year. The student intervention plan may include disciplinary consequences and/or remedial actions and may require the student, accompanied by a parent, to satisfactorily complete a class or training program to reduce harassment, intimidation, or bullying behavior. Each student intervention plan must be approved by the Superintendent.

While the majority of incidents may be addressed solely by school officials, the Superintendent or designee and the Principal shall report a harassment, intimidation, or bullying incident to law enforcement officials if the conduct rises to the level of a mandatory report as outlined in the Uniform State Memorandum of Agreement Between Education and Law Enforcement Officials.

Consequences and Appropriate Remedial Actions - Adults

The district will also impose appropriate consequences and remedial actions to an adult who commits an act of harassment, intimidation, or bullying of a student. The consequences may include, but not be limited to: verbal or written



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 10 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

reprimand; increment withholding; legal action; disciplinary action; termination; and/or bans from providing services, participating in school district-sponsored programs, or being in school buildings or on school grounds. Remedial measures may include, but not be limited to: in or out-of-school counseling, professional development programs, and work environment modifications.

E. Reporting Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying

The Board of Education requires the Principal at each school to be responsible for receiving all complaints alleging harassment, intimidation, or bullying committed by an adult or youth against a student. All Board members, school employees, and volunteers and contracted service providers who have contact with students, are required to verbally report alleged acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying to the Principal or designee on the same day when the individual witnessed or received reliable information regarding any such incident. All Board members, school employees, and contracted service providers who have contact with students, also shall submit a New Jersey Department of Education-approved HIB 338 Form to the Principal within two school days of the verbal report. Failure to make the required report(s) may result in disciplinary action. The HIB 338 Form shall be kept on file at the school, but shall not be included in any student record unless the incident results in disciplinary action or is otherwise required to be contained in a student's record under State or Federal Law.

The district may not fail to initiate an investigation of harassment, intimidation, or bullying solely because written documentation was not provided. Failing to conduct a harassment, intimidation, or bullying investigation solely because a parent or student did not submit written documentation violates the Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act and this Policy. If a parent makes a verbal allegation of harassment, intimidation, or bullying to a district staff member, but does not complete and submit the HIB 338 Form, the staff member or a designee must complete and submit the HIB 338 Form.

The Principal or designee is required to inform the parents of all students involved in alleged incidents, and, as appropriate, may discuss the availability of counseling and other intervention services. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.7(a)2.viii.(2), when providing notification to the parents of all students involved, the Principal or designee shall take into account the circumstances of the incident when conveying the nature of the incident, including the actual or perceived category motivating the alleged offense. The Principal or designee shall keep a written record of the date, time, and manner of notification to the parents.



MOUNTAIN LAKES **BOARD OF EDUCATION**

Students 5512/Page 11 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

The Principal, upon receiving a verbal or written report, may take interim measures to ensure the safety, health, and welfare of all parties pending the findings of the investigation.

Students, parents, and visitors are encouraged to report alleged acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying to the Principal or designee on the same day when the individual witnessed or received reliable information regarding any such incident. The school district shall provide a person an online means to complete the HIB 338 Form to anonymously report an act of harassment, intimidation, or bullying. Formal action for violations of the Code of Student Conduct may not be taken solely on the basis of an anonymous report.

A Board member or school employee who promptly reports an incident of harassment, intimidation, or bullying and who makes this report in compliance with the procedures set forth in this Policy, is immune from a cause of action for damages arising from any failure to remedy the reported incident.

The Principal shall promptly submit a copy of each completed HIB 338 Form to the Superintendent.

The district may consider every mechanism available to simplify reporting, including standard reporting forms and/or web-based reporting mechanisms. For anonymous reporting, in addition to making the HIB 338 Form available online, the district may consider locked boxes located in areas of a school where reports can be submitted without fear of being observed.

A school administrator who receives a report of harassment, intimidation, or bullying or who determines a reported incident or complaint, assuming all facts presented are true, is a report within the scope of N.J.S.A. 18A:37-14 and fails to initiate or conduct an investigation, or who should have known of an incident of harassment, intimidation, or bullying and fails to take sufficient action to minimize or eliminate the harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may be subject to disciplinary action. The district also should consider procedures and disciplinary action when it is found that someone had information regarding a harassment, intimidation, or bullying incident, but did not make the required report(s).

F. Anti-Bullying Coordinator, Anti-Bullying Specialist, and School Safety/School Climate Team(s)



7

POLICY

MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 12 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

1. The Superintendent shall appoint a district Anti-Bullying Coordinator. The Superintendent shall make every effort to appoint an employee of the school district to this position.

The district Anti-Bullying Coordinator shall:

- a. Be responsible for coordinating and strengthening the school district's policies to prevent, identify, and address harassment, intimidation, or bullying of students;
- b. Collaborate with school Anti-Bullying Specialists in the district, the Board of Education, and the Superintendent to prevent, identify, and respond to harassment, intimidation, or bullying of students in the district;
- c. Provide data, in collaboration with the Superintendent, to the Department of Education regarding harassment, intimidation, or bullying of students;
- d. Execute such other duties related to school harassment, intimidation, or bullying as requested by the Superintendent; and
- e. Meet at least twice a school year with the school Anti-Bullying Specialist(s) to discuss and strengthen procedures and policies to prevent, identify, and address harassment, intimidation, or bullying in the district.
- 2. The Principal in each school shall appoint a school Anti-Bullying Specialist. The Anti-Bullying Specialist shall be a guidance counselor, school psychologist, or other certified staff member trained to be the Anti-Bullying Specialist from among the currently employed staff in the school.

The school Anti-Bullying Specialist shall:

- a. Chair the School Safety/School Climate Team as provided in N.J.S.A. 18A:37-21;
- b. Lead the investigation of incidents of harassment, intimidation, or bullying in the school; and



MOUNTAIN LAKES **BOARD OF EDUCATION**

Students 5512/Page 13 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

- c. Act as the primary school official responsible for preventing, identifying, and addressing incidents of harassment, intimidation, or bullying in the school.
- 3. A School Safety/School Climate Team shall be formed in each school in the district to develop, foster, and maintain a positive school climate by focusing on the on-going systemic operational procedures and educational practices in the school, and to address issues such as harassment, intimidation, or bullying that affect school climate and culture. Each School Safety/School Climate Team shall meet, at a minimum, two times per school year. The School Safety/School Climate Team shall consist of the Principal or the Principal's designee who, if possible, shall be a senior administrator in the school and the following appointees of the Principal: a teacher in the school; a school Anti-Bullying Specialist; a parent of a student in the school; and other members to be determined by the Principal. The school Anti-Bullying Specialist shall serve as the chair of the School Safety/School Climate Team.

The School Safety/School Climate Team shall:

- a. Receive records of all complaints of harassment, intimidation, or bullying of students that have been reported to the Principal;
- b. Receive copies of all reports prepared after an investigation of an incident of harassment, intimidation, or bullying;
- c. Identify and address patterns of harassment, intimidation, or bullying of students in the school;
- d. Review and strengthen school climate and the policies of the school in order to prevent and address harassment, intimidation, or bullying of students;
- e. Educate the community, including students, teachers, administrative staff, and parents, to prevent and address harassment, intimidation, or bullying of students;
- f. Participate in the training required pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:37-13 et seq. and other training which the Principal or the district Anti-Bullying Coordinator may request. The School Safety/School Climate Team shall be provided professional



MOUNTAIN LAKES **BOARD OF EDUCATION**

Students 5512/Page 14 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

development opportunities that may address effective practices of successful school climate programs or approaches; and

g. Execute such other duties related to harassment, intimidation, or bullying as requested by the Principal or district Anti-Bullying Coordinator.

Notwithstanding any provision of N.J.S.A. 18A:37-21 to the contrary, a parent who is a member of the School Safety/School Climate Team shall not participate in the activities of the team set forth in 3. a., b., or c. above or any other activities of the team which may compromise the confidentiality of a student, consistent with, at a minimum, the requirements of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (20 U.S.C. Section 1232 and 34 CFR Part 99), N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7, Student Records and N.J.A.C. 6A:14-2.9, Student Records.

G. Investigating Allegations of Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying

Principal's Preliminary Determination

Prior to initiating an investigation regarding a reported incident or complaint, the Principal or designee, in consultation with the anti-bullying specialist, shall make a preliminary determination as to whether a reported incident or complaint, assuming all facts are presented as true, is a report within the scope of N.J.S.A. 18A:37-14.

Should the Principal or designee, in consultation with the anti-bullying specialist, determine that a reported incident or complaint, assuming all facts presented are true, is not a report within the scope of N.J.S.A. 18A:37-14, the incident will be addressed through the Board's Code of Student Conduct policy. The HIB 338 Form shall be completed, even if a preliminary determination is made not to conduct an investigation of harassment, intimidation, or bullying because the reported incident or complaint is a report outside the scope of the definition of harassment, intimidation, or bullying, and must be submitted to the Superintendent. The Principal will provide the parents of the alleged offender(s) and victim(s) with formal notice of the decision not to initiate a harassment, intimidation, or bullying investigation.

The HIB 338 Form shall be kept on file at the school and will only be added to a student record if the alleged incident is founded, disciplinary action is



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 15 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

imposed or is otherwise required to be contained in a student's record under State or Federal law.

The Superintendent may require the Principal to conduct a harassment, intimidation, or bullying investigation of the incident if the Superintendent determines that the incident is within the scope of harassment, intimidation, or bullying and shall notify the Principal of this determination in writing. Should the Superintendent require the Principal to conduct a harassment, intimidation, or bullying investigation, the Principal will immediately initiate an investigation of harassment, intimidation, or bullying by referring the matter to the school anti-bullying specialist.

Additionally, any preliminary determination that finds the incident or complaint is a report outside the scope of N.J.S.A. 18A:37-14 may be appealed to the Board, pursuant to the Board policies and procedures governing student grievances, and thereafter to the Commissioner (N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.7(a)ix(1) and (a)ix(1)(A)). Should the preliminary determination not to conduct an investigation of harassment, intimidation, or bullying be overturned, the Principal will immediately initiate an investigation of harassment, intimidation, or bullying by referring the matter to the school anti-bullying specialist.

The Board requires a thorough and complete investigation to be conducted for each reported incident or complaint, assuming all facts presented are true, that is determined to be a report within the scope of N.J.S.A. 18A:37-14. The investigation shall be initiated by the Principal or designee within one school day of the verbal report of the incident. The investigation shall be conducted by the school anti-bullying specialist appointed by the Principal. The Principal may appoint additional personnel who are not school anti-bullying specialists to assist the school anti-bullying specialist in the investigation. Investigations of complaints concerning adult conduct shall not be investigated by a member of the same bargaining unit as the individual who is the subject of the investigation. The anti-bullying specialist may not participate in an investigation regarding their supervisor or staff at a higher administrative level.

The investigation shall be completed, and the written findings submitted to the Principal as soon as possible, but not later than ten school days from the date of the written report of the alleged incident of harassment, intimidation, or bullying or ten school days from the date of the written notification from the Superintendent to the Principal to initiate an investigation. Should



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 16 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

information regarding the reported incident and the investigation be received after the end of the ten-day period, the school anti-bullying specialist or the Principal shall amend the original report of the results of the investigation to ensure there is an accurate and current record of the facts and activities concerning the reported incident.

The Principal shall proceed in accordance with the Code of Student Conduct, as appropriate, based on the investigation findings. The Principal shall submit the report to the Superintendent within two school days of the completion of the investigation and in accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act (N.J.S.A. 52:14B-1 et seq.). As appropriate to the findings from the investigation, the Superintendent shall ensure the Code of Student Conduct has been implemented and provide intervention services, order counseling, establish training programs to reduce harassment, intimidation, or bullying and enhance school climate, or take or recommend other appropriate action, including seeking further information as necessary.

The Superintendent shall report the results of each investigation to the Board no later than the date of the regularly scheduled Board meeting following the completion of the investigation. The Superintendent's report also shall include information on any consequences imposed under the Code of Student Conduct, intervention services provided, counseling ordered, training established or other action taken or recommended by the Superintendent.

Parents of the students who are parties to the investigation shall be provided with information about the investigation, in accordance with Federal and State law and regulation. The information to be provided to parents includes the nature of the investigation, whether the district found evidence of harassment, intimidation, or bullying, or whether consequences were imposed or services provided to address the incident of harassment, intimidation, or bullying. This information shall be provided in writing within five school days after the results of the investigation are reported to the Board.

A parent may request a hearing before the Board after receiving the information. Any request by the parents for a hearing before the Board concerning the written information about a harassment, intimidation, or bullying investigation, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:37-15(b)(6)(d), must be filed with the Board Secretary no later than sixty calendar days after the written information is received by the parents. The hearing shall be held within ten business days of the request. Prior to the hearing, the



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 17 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

Superintendent shall confidentially share a redacted copy of the HIB 338 Form that removes all student identification information with the Board. The Board shall conduct the hearing in executive session, pursuant to the Open Public Meetings Act (N.J.S.A. 10:4-1 et seq.), to protect the confidentiality of the students. At the hearing, the Board may hear testimony from and consider information provided by the school antibullying specialist and others, as appropriate, regarding the alleged incident; the findings from the investigation of the alleged incident; recommendations for consequences or services; and any programs instituted to reduce such incidents, prior to rendering a determination. Where a quorum of the Board is unable to be convened within the 10-day period, the Board may utilize an HIB committee to hold an HIB hearing unless the parent consents to adjourn the hearing until a quorum can be convened. Following the HIB hearing, the HIB committee will forward its recommendation to the full Board of Education for review at the Board's upcoming meeting.

At the regularly scheduled Board meeting following its receipt of the report or following a hearing in executive session, the Board shall issue a decision, in writing, to affirm, reject, or modify the Superintendent's decision. The Board's decision may be appealed to the Commissioner of Education, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:3, no later than ninety days after the issuance of the Board's decision.

A school administrator who receives a report of harassment, intimidation, or bullying and fails to initiate or conduct an investigation, or who should have known of an incident of harassment, intimidation, or bullying and fails to take sufficient action to minimize or eliminate the harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may be subject to disciplinary action.

The Board also requires the thorough investigation of complaints or reports of harassment, intimidation, or bullying, occurring on district school buses, at district school-sponsored functions, and off school grounds involving a student who attends an approved private school for students with disabilities. The investigation will be conducted by the Board's antibullying specialist in consultation with the approved private school for students with disabilities.



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 18 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

H. Responding to Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying

The Board of Education authorizes the Principal of each school to define the range of ways in which school staff will respond once an incident of harassment, intimidation, or bullying is confirmed, and the Superintendent shall respond to confirmed harassment, intimidation, or bullying, according to the parameters described below and in this Policy. The Board recognizes that some acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying may be isolated incidents requiring that the school officials respond appropriately to the individual(s) committing the acts. Other acts may be so serious or parts of a larger pattern of harassment, intimidation, or bullying that they require a response either at the classroom, school building, or school district levels or by law enforcement officials. Consequences and appropriate remedial actions for a student who commits an act of harassment, intimidation, or bullying may range from positive behavioral interventions up to and including suspension or expulsion, as permitted under N.J.S.A. 18A:37, Discipline of Pupils and as set forth in N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.2, Short-term suspensions, N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.3, Long-term suspensions, and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.4, Expulsions.

In considering whether a response beyond the individual is appropriate, school officials shall consider the nature and circumstances of the act; the degree of harm; the nature and severity of the behavior; past incidences or past or continuing patterns of behavior; and the context in which the alleged incident(s) occurred. Institutional (i.e., classroom, school building, school district) responses can range from school and community surveys, to mailings, to focus groups, to adoption of research-based harassment, intimidation, or bullying prevention program models, to training for certificated and non-certificated staff, to participation of parents and other community members and organizations, to small or large group presentations for fully addressing the actions and the school's response to the actions, in the context of the acceptable student and staff member behavior and the consequences of such actions, and to the involvement of law enforcement officers, including safe schools resource officers.

This Policy and the Code of Student Conduct shall apply to instances when a school employee is made aware of alleged harassment, intimidation, or bullying occurring off school grounds.

For every incident of harassment, intimidation, or bullying, the school officials must respond appropriately to the individual who committed the act. The range of responses to confirmed harassment, intimidation, or bullying acts should include individual, classroom, school, or district responses, as appropriate to the findings



MOUNTAIN LAKES **BOARD OF EDUCATION**

Students 5512/Page 19 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

from each incident. Examples of responses that apply to each of these categories are provided below:

- 1. Individual responses can include positive behavioral interventions (e.g., peer mentoring, short-term counseling, life skills groups) and punitive actions (e.g., detention, in-school or out-of-school suspension, expulsion, law enforcement report or other legal action).
- 2. Classroom responses can include class discussions about an incident of harassment, intimidation, or bullying, role plays, research projects, observing and discussing audio-visual materials on these subjects, and skill-building lessons in courtesy, tolerance, assertiveness, and conflict management.
- 3. School responses can include theme days, learning station programs, parent programs, and information disseminated to students and parents, such as fact sheets or newsletters explaining acceptable uses of electronic and wireless communication devices or strategies for fostering expected student behavior.
- 4. District-wide responses can include community involvement in policy review and development; professional development programs; adoption of curricular and school-wide programs, coordination with community-based organizations (e.g., mental health, health services, health facilities, law enforcement officials, faith-based organizations); and disseminating information on the core ethical values adopted by the Board's Code of Student Conduct, per N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.1(a)2.

In providing support for victims of harassment, intimidation, or bullying, the district should identify a range of strategies and resources, which may include, but is not limited to, the following actions for individual victims:

- Counseling;
- Teacher Aides;
- Hallway and playground monitors;
- Schedule changes;
- Before and after school supervision;
- School transportation supervision;
- School transfers; and
- Therapy.



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 20 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

I. Reprisal or Retaliation

The Board of Education prohibits a Board member, school employee, contracted service provider who has contact with students, school volunteer, or student from engaging in reprisal, retaliation, or false accusation against a victim, witness, or any other person who has reliable information about an act of harassment, intimidation, or bullying or who reports an act of harassment, intimidation, or bullying. The consequence and appropriate remedial action for a person who engages in reprisal or retaliation shall be determined by the administrator after consideration of the nature, severity, and circumstances of the act, in accordance with case law, Federal and State statutes and regulations, and district policies and procedures.

J. False Accusations of Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying

The Board of Education prohibits any person from falsely accusing another as a means of harassment, intimidation, or bullying.

- 1. Students Consequences and appropriate remedial action for a student could range from positive behavioral interventions up to and including suspension or expulsion, as permitted under N.J.S.A. 18A:37-1, Discipline of Pupils and as set forth in N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.2, Short-term suspensions, N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.3, Long-term suspensions, and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.4, Expulsions;
- 2. School Employees Consequences and appropriate remedial action for a school employee or contracted service provider who has contact with students could entail discipline in accordance with district policies, procedures, and agreements; and
- 3. Visitors or Volunteers Consequences and appropriate remedial action for a visitor or volunteer could be determined by the school administrator after consideration of the nature, severity, and circumstances of the act, including law enforcement reports or other legal actions, removal of buildings or grounds privileges, or prohibiting contact with students or the provision of student services.

K. Additional Policy Requirements

The Board of Education requires the Superintendent to annually disseminate this Policy to all school employees, contracted service providers who have contact



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 21 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

with students, school volunteers, students and parents who have children enrolled in a school in the school district, along with a statement explaining that this Policy applies to all acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:37-14, that occur on school property, at school-sponsored functions or on a school bus and, as appropriate, acts that occur off school grounds.

The Superintendent shall post a link to this Policy that is prominently displayed on the home page of the school district's website. The Superintendent shall ensure that notice of this Policy appears in the student handbook and all other publications of the school district that set forth the comprehensive rules, procedures, and standards for schools within the school district.

The Superintendent shall post the name, school phone number, school address and school email address of the district anti-bullying coordinator on the home page of the school district's website. Additionally, the Superintendent shall post the contact information for the School Climate State Coordinator on the school district home page alongside this Policy.

Each Principal or designee shall post the name, school phone number, school address, and school email address of both the school anti-bullying specialist and the district anti-bullying coordinator on the home page of each school's website.

The Superintendent shall post the New Jersey Department of Education's Guidance for Parents on the Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act on the district homepage and on the homepage for each school in the district with a website.

The Superintendent and the Principals shall provide training on the school district's harassment, intimidation, or bullying policies to school employees contracted service providers and volunteers who have significant contact with students. The training shall include instruction on preventing bullying on the basis of the protected categories enumerated in N.J.S.A. 18A:37-14 and other distinguishing characteristics that may incite incidents of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying. The school district's employee training program shall include information regarding the school district policy against harassment, intimidation, or bullying, which shall be provided to full-time and part-time staff, contracted service providers and school volunteers who have significant contact with students.

The Superintendent shall develop and implement a process for annually discussing the school district policy on harassment, intimidation, or bullying with



MOUNTAIN LAKES **BOARD OF EDUCATION**

Students 5512/Page 22 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

students. The Superintendent and the Principal(s) shall annually conduct a reevaluation, reassessment, and review of this Policy and any report(s) and/or finding(s) of the school safety/school climate team, with input from the school anti-bullying specialists, and recommend revisions and additions to this Policy as well as to harassment, intimidation, or bullying prevention programs and approaches based on the findings from the evaluation, reassessment, and review.

L. Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying Training and Prevention Programs

Each public school teacher and educational services professional shall be required to complete at least two hours of instruction in harassment, intimidation, or bullying prevention within each five year professional development period as part of the professional development requirement pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18:37-22.d. The required two hours of suicide prevention instruction shall include information on the risk of suicide and incidents of harassment, intimidation, or bullying and information on reducing the risk of suicide in students who are members of communities identified as having members at high risk of suicide.

Each newly elected or appointed Board member must complete, during the first year of the member's first term, a training program on harassment, intimidation, or bullying in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:12-33.

A school leader shall complete school leader training that shall include information on the prevention of harassment, intimidation, or bullying as required in N.J.S.A. 18A:26-8.2.

The school district shall annually observe a "Week of Respect" beginning with the first Monday in October. In order to recognize the importance of character education, the school district will observe the week by providing age-appropriate instruction focusing on the prevention of harassment, intimidation, or bullying as defined in N.J.S.A. 18A:37-14. Throughout the school year the district will provide ongoing age-appropriate instruction on preventing harassment, intimidation, or bullying, in accordance with the New Jersey Student Learning Standards, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:37-29.

The school district and each school in the district will annually establish, implement, document, and assess harassment, intimidation, or bullying prevention programs or approaches, and other initiatives in consultation with school staff, students, administrators, volunteers, parents, law enforcement, and community members. The programs or approaches and other initiatives shall be designed to



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 23 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

create school-wide conditions to prevent and address harassment, intimidation, or bullying in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:37-17.

M. Reports to Board of Education and New Jersey Department of Education

The Superintendent shall report two times each school year, between September 1 and January 1 and between January 1 and June 30 at a public hearing all acts of violence, vandalism, and harassment, intimidation, or bullying which occurred during the previous reporting period in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:17-46. The information shall also be reported to the New Jersey Department of Education in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:17-46.

N. School and District Grading Requirements

Each school and each district shall receive a grade for the purpose of assessing their efforts to implement policies and programs consistent with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18:37-13 et seq. The grade received by a school and the district shall be posted on the homepage of the school's website and the district's website in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:17-46. A link to the report that was submitted by the Superintendent to the Department of Education shall also be available on the school district's website. This information shall be posted on the websites within ten days of receipt of the grade for each school and the district.

O. Reports to Law Enforcement

The Superintendent or designee and the Principal shall consult law enforcement, as appropriate, pursuant to the provisions of the Uniform State Memorandum of Agreement Between Education and Law Enforcement Officials, if the student's behavior may constitute a possible violation of the New Jersey Code of Criminal Justice.

Some acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying may be bias-related acts and school officials must report to law enforcement officials any bias related acts, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3.(e), and pursuant to the provisions of the Memorandum of Agreement Between Education and Law Enforcement Officials.

P. Collective Bargaining Agreements and Individual Contracts

Nothing in N.J.S.A. 18A:37-13.1 et seq. may be construed as affecting the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement or individual contract of



MOUNTAIN LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students 5512/Page 24 of 24 HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING (M)

employment in effect on the Anti-Bullying Bill of Rights Act's effective date (January 5, 2011). N.J.S.A. 18A:37-30.

The Board of Education prohibits the employment of or contracting for school staff positions with individuals whose criminal history record check reveals a record of conviction for a crime of bias intimidation or conspiracy to commit or attempt to commit a crime of bias intimidation.

Q. Students with Disabilities

Nothing contained in N.J.S.A. 18A:37-13.1 et seq. may alter or reduce the rights of a student with a disability with regard to disciplinary actions or to general or special education services and supports. N.J.S.A. 18A:37-32.

The school district shall submit all subsequent amended Harassment, Intimidation, or Bullying Policies to the Executive County Superintendent of Schools within thirty days of Board adoption.

N.J.S.A. 18A:37-13 through 18A:37-37 N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.1 through 6A:16-7.9

Model Policy and Guidance for Prohibiting Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying on School Property, at School-Sponsored Functions and on School Buses – August 2022 – New Jersey Department of Education

Adopted: 21 November 2022 Revised: 03 April 2023





PROGRAM 2200/page 1 of 3 Curriculum Content June 24 M

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 209 and 233]

2200 CURRICULUM CONTENT

The Board of Education will provide the instruction and services mandated by law and rules as necessary for the implementation of a thorough and efficient system of free public education and such other instruction and services as the Board deems appropriate for the thorough and efficient education of the students of this district. The Board shall annually approve a list of all programs and courses that comprise the district's curriculum and shall approve any subsequent changes in the curriculum in accordance with Policy 2220 – **Adoption of Courses**.

For the purposes of this Ppolicy "curriculum" means planned learning opportunities designed to assist students toward the achievement of the intended outcomes of instruction.

The curriculum will be reviewed by the Superintendent and approved annually by the Board. In accordance with law, the curriculum shall, as a minimum, include the curricular mandates of N.J.S.A. 18A – Education, and N.J.A.C. 6—and 6A – Education, and all of the New Jersey Student Learning Standards Core Curriculum Content Standards and Cumulative Progress Indicators—and the courses required by Policy 5460 – High School Graduation and N.J.A.C. 6A:8-5 for high school graduation.

The Superintendent is responsible for implementing the curriculum approved by the Board.

The Board directs the curriculum shall be consistent with the educational goals and objectives of this district and, the New Jersey Student Learning Standards Core Curriculum Content Standards and be responsive to identified student needs. The Superintendent shall, in consultation with teaching staff members, assure the effective articulation of curriculum across all grade levels and among the school districts sending to the Mountain Lakes School District.





PROGRAM 2200/page 2 of 3 Curriculum Content

The curriculum shall provide programs in accordance with Board policies and the New Jersey Core Curriculum Content Standards including but not limited to:

- 1. Preparation of all students for employment or post secondary study upon graduation from high school;
- 2. Instruction in workplace readiness skills, visual and performing arts, comprehensive health and physical education, language arts literacy, mathematics, science, social studies (including instruction on the Constitution of the United States, United States history, Community Civics, and the geography, history and civics of New Jersey), and World Languages;
- 3. Continuous access to sufficient programs and services of a library/media facility, classroom collection, or both, to support the educational program of all students in accordance with Policy 2530;
- 4. Guidance and counseling to assist in career and academic planning for all students, in accordance with Policy 2411;
- 5. A continuum of educational programs and services for all children with disabilities, in accordance with Policy and Regulation 2460;
- 6. Bilingual education, English as a Second Language, and English language services for students of limited English language proficiency, when the number of such students so necessitates, in accordance with Policy 2423;
- 7. Programs and services for students at risk who require remedial assistance in accordance with Policies 2414, 2415, and 5460;
- 8. Equal educational opportunity for all students in accordance with Policies 2260, 5750, and 5755;
- 9. Career awareness and exploration as required, and vocational education as appropriate;



8

POLICY GUIDE

PROGRAM 2200/page 3 of 3 Curriculum Content

- 10. Educational opportunities for students with exceptional abilities, in accordance with Policy 2464;
- 11. Instruction in accident and fire prevention;
- 12. A substance abuse prevention program;
- 13. A program for family life education; and
- 14. Programs that encourage the active involvement of representatives from the community, business, industry, labor and higher education in the development of educational programs aligned with the standards.

N.J.S.A. 18A:6-2; 18A:6-3; 18A:35-1 et seq. N.J.A.C. 6A:8-1.1 et seq.; 6A:14 et seq. New Jersey **Student Learning Standards** Core Curriculum Content Standards

Adopted:





TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS
3160/page 1 of 3
Physical Examination
June 24
M

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 211 and 233]

3160 PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

The Board of Education shall requires any each candidate for employment who has received receives a conditional offer of employment to undergo a physical examination(s) pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:16-2.a. to determine whether the candidate is able to perform with reasonable accommodation job-related functions pursuant to P.L. 101-336, Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3.

If upon completing an examination(s) it is determined a candidate for employment who received a conditional offer of employment is unable to perform with reasonable accommodation job-related functions pursuant to the provisions of the ADA, the conditional offer of employment will be rescinded either by the Superintendent of Schools, if the Board has not yet approved the appointment, or by the Board, if the Board had approved the appointment at a Board meeting.

In accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.2(a), the Board will develop the requirements for tThe physical examination and provide for notification to candidates for employment regarding the requirements for the physical examination which shall include, but not be is not limited to, a health history to include past serious illnesses and injuries; current health problems; allergies; and a record of immunizations. The physical examination shall also include, but not be limited to, a health screening to include, but not be limited to: height and weight; blood pressure; pulse and respiratory rate; vision screening; and hearing screening.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:16-3, the Board shall bear the cost of physical examinations required by this Policy performed by a physician or institution designated by the Board. However, the candidate shall bear the cost if the examination is performed by a physician or institution designated by the candidate with approval of the Board. In the event the Board approves the physician or institution designated by the candidate to complete an examination required by this Policy, the candidate will be provided with the detailed requirements of the examination.





TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 3160/page 2 of 3 Physical Examination

Teaching staff member School employee physicals, examinations, and/or annual medical updates do not require screening or disclosure of HIV status.

The Board will follow the current New Jersey Department of Health Guidance for Tuberculosis (TB) Testing in New Jersey Schools. A Mantoux tuberculosis test shall be given to all student teachers, school bus drivers on contract with the district, and contractors or volunteers who have contact with students.

Health records of candidates for employment and current teaching staff members All staff members' medical and health records, including computerized records, shall will be secured, stored, and maintained separately from other personnel files pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(d). The information contained in medical records shall will be kept confidential. Only the teaching staff member, the Superintendent, and the school medical inspector shall have access to medical information regarding an individual teaching staff member employee. Health records shall be the property of the Board and may be shared only with authorized individuals in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:16-5 and N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(d).

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(c), an individual The teaching staff member may provide health-status information, including medications that may be of value to medical personnel in the event of an emergency requiring treatment. In such instances, a the teaching staff member may also choose to share with the staff member's Building Principal and, if desired, with the certified school nurse, information regarding current health status to assure ready access in a medical emergency.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:16-2, the Board may require Additional individual psychiatric or physical or psychiatric examinations of a teaching any staff member may be required by the Board whenever, in the Board's judgment of the Board, a teaching staff member shows evidence of deviation from normal physical or mental health. Any additional individual examinations will be pursuant to the requirements of N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(b). Additional examinations and/or certifications may be required to verify fitness in accordance with Policies 3161 – Examination for Cause or disability in accordance with Policies 3425 – Work Related Disability Pay and 3435 – Anticipated Disability.





TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS 3160/page 3 of 3 Physical Examination

42 U-S-C-A- 12101

N.J.S.A. 18A:16-2; **18A:16-3**; **18A:16-5** N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.1; 6A:32-6.2; 6A:32-6.3

Adopted:





TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS
R 3160/page 1 of 5
Physical Examination
June 24
M

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 211 and 233]

R 3160 PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

A. Definitions

- 1. "Employee" or "staff member" means the holder of any full-time or part-time position of employment.
- 2. "Health history" means the record of a person's past health events obtained in writing, completed by the individual or their physician.
- 3. "Health screening" means the use of one or more diagnostic tools to test a person for the presence or precursors of a particular disease.
- 4. "Physical examination" means the assessment of an individual's health by a professional licensed to practice medicine or osteopathy, or by an advanced practice nurse or physician assistant. Physical examination includes specific procedures required by statute as stated in N.J.A.C. 6A:16-2.2.
- 5. "Physician assistant" means a health care professional licensed to practice medicine with physician supervision.
- B. Physical Examinations Candidates for Employment Who Have Received a Conditional Offer of Employment
 - 1. Candidates for employment who have received a conditional offer of employment shall be required to undergo a physical examination. The physical examination shall include, but is not limited to, a health history and health screenings to determine whether the candidate is able to perform with reasonable accommodation job-related functions pursuant to P.L. 101-336, Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA). The candidate for employment will be provided the Board's requirements for the physical examination.





TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS R 3160/page 2 of 5 Physical Examination

- a. A health history shall include, but is not limited to, the candidate's:
 - (1) Past serious illnesses and injuries;
 - (2) Current health problems;
 - (3) Allergies; and
 - (4) A record of immunizations.
- b. A health screening shall include, but is not limited to:
 - (1) Height;
 - (2) Weight;
 - (3) Pulse and respiratory rate;
 - (4) Hearing screening;
 - (5) Blood pressure;
 - (6) Vision screening;
- C. Medical Requirements Upon Employment
 - 1. The Board will follow the current New Jersey Department of Health Guidance for Tuberculosis (TB) Testing in New Jersey Schools. A Mantoux tuberculosis test shall be given upon employment of all newly hired staff members (full time and parttime), and to all student teachers, school bus drivers on contract with the district, and to contractors or volunteers who have contact with students. Tuberculosis testing is not required for volunteers working with students less than twenty hours per month.





TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS R 3160/page 3 of 5 Physical Examination

- a. Tuberculosis testing is not required:
 - (1) For new staff members, student teachers, and contractors of the school district with a documented negative tuberculosis test result in the last six months or a documented positive tuberculosis test, regardless of when this test was done; or
 - (2) For a school district staff member transferring between school districts or from a non-public school within New Jersey with a documented tuberculosis test result upon his/her initial employment by a New Jersey school.
- b. Staff members, student teachers, contractors or volunteers who have contact with students and claim a religious exemption cannot be compelled to submit to tuberculosis testing. In these instances, a symptom assessment must be done (TB-8 Form). If TB-like symptoms are reported, a physician must document that the staff member, student teacher, contractor, or volunteer does not have an active disease.
 - (1) The school district shall determine the criteria essential to document a valid religious exemption.
- c. Procedures for the administration of the Mantoux tuberculosis test, interpretation of reactions, follow-up procedures, and reporting shall be conducted in accordance with the guidelines and requirements of the New Jersey Department of Health.
- 2. An individual teaching staff member may provide health-status information, including medications, that may be of value to medical personnel in the event of an emergency requiring treatment. In such instances, the teaching staff member may also choose to share with the Principal and, if desired, with the certified school nurse, information regarding current health status to assure ready access in a medical emergency **pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(c)**.





TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS R 3160/page 4 of 5 Physical Examination

D. Health Records

- 1. All Hhealth records of candidates for employment who have received a conditional offer of employment and of current employees, including computerized records, shall be secured, stored, and maintained separately from other personnel files in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(d).
- 2. Health records **shall be the property of the Board and** may be shared only with authorized individuals in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:16-5 **and N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(d)**.
- E. **Teaching Staff Member** Employees' Physical Examinations and Medical Updates
 - 1. **Teaching staff member** School employee physicals, examinations, and/or annual medical updates shall not require disclosure of HIV status.

F. Review of Examinations and Assessments

- 1. The results of a the physical examination or testing of a candidate for employment who has received a conditional offer of employment will be reviewed by the Superintendent and the school physician and/or the Medical Review Officer, who, in consultation with the Superintendent, will to determine a the candidate's physical and mental fitness to function with reasonable accommodation in the position for which the candidate he/she has made application. That determination will be made a part of the candidate's application.
- G. Rescinding a Conditional Offer of Employment Notice to Candidates for Employment Who Receive a Conditional Offer of Employment
 - 1. All candidates for employment who receive a conditional offer of employment shall be informed by the district that:





TEACHING STAFF MEMBERS
R 3160/page 5 of 5
Physical Examination

- a. An offer of employment by the Superintendent of Schools or designee is conditional upon completion of the Board's required physical examinations, **tests**, and assessments;
- b. The required examinations, **tests**, and assessments will be used to determine the candidate's ability to perform with reasonable accommodations job-related functions pursuant to ADA; and
- c. If it is determined upon completing the examination(s), tests, or assessment(s) the candidate is unable to perform with reasonable accommodations job-related functions pursuant to the provisions of the ADA, the conditional offer of employment will be rescinded either by the Superintendent if the Board has not yet approved the appointment or by the Board, if the Board had approved the appointment at a Board meeting.

Adopted:





SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS
4160/page 1 of 3
Physical Examination
June 24
M

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 211 and 233]

4160 PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

The Board of Education shall requires any each candidate for employment who has received receives a conditional offer of employment to undergo a physical examination(s) pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:16-2.a. to determine whether the candidate is able to perform with reasonable accommodation job-related functions pursuant to P.L. 101-336, Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3.

If upon completing an examination(s) it is determined a candidate for employment who received a conditional offer of employment is unable to perform with reasonable accommodation job-related functions pursuant to the provisions of the ADA, the conditional offer of employment will be rescinded either by the Superintendent of Schools, if the Board has not yet approved the appointment, or by the Board, if the Board had approved the appointment at a Board meeting.

In accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.2(a), the Board will develop the requirements for tThe physical examination and provide for notification to candidates for employment regarding the requirements for the physical examination which shall include, but not be is not limited to, a health history to include past serious illnesses and injuries; current health problems; allergies; and a record of immunizations. The physical examination shall also include, but not be limited to, a health screening to include, but not be limited to: height and weight; blood pressure; pulse and respiratory rate; vision screening; and hearing screening.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:16-3, the Board shall bear the cost of physical examinations required by this Policy performed by a physician or institution designated by the Board. However, the candidate shall bear the cost if the examination is performed by a physician or institution designated by the candidate with approval of the Board. In the event the Board approves the physician or institution designated by the candidate to complete an examination required by this Policy, the candidate will be provided with the detailed requirements of the examination.





SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS 4160/page 2 of 3 Physical Examination

Support staff member School employee physicals, examinations, and/or annual medical updates do not require screening or disclosure of HIV status.

The Board will follow the current New Jersey Department of Health Guidance for Tuberculosis (TB) Testing in New Jersey Schools. A Mantoux tuberculosis test shall be given to all student teachers, school bus drivers on contract with the district, and contractors or volunteers who have contact with students.

Health records of candidates for employment and current support staff members All staff members' medical and health records, including computerized records, shall will be secured, stored, and maintained separately from other personnel files pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(d). The information contained in medical records shall will be kept confidential. Only the support staff member, the Superintendent, and the school medical inspector shall have access to medical information regarding an individual support staff member employee. Health records shall be the property of the Board and may be shared only with authorized individuals in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:16-5 and N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(d).

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(c), an individual The support staff member may provide health-status information, including medications that may be of value to medical personnel in the event of an emergency requiring treatment. In such instances, a the support staff member may also choose to share with the staff member's Building Principal and, if desired, with the certified school nurse, information regarding current health status to assure ready access in a medical emergency.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:16-2, the Board may require Additional individual psychiatric—or physical or psychiatric examinations of a support any staff member may be required by the Board whenever, in the Board's judgment of the Board, a support staff member shows evidence of deviation from normal physical or mental health. Any additional individual examinations will be pursuant to the requirements of N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(b). Additional examinations and/or certifications may be required to verify fitness in accordance with Policy 4161 — Examination for Cause or disability in accordance with Policies 4425 — Work Related Disability Pay and 4435 — Anticipated Disability.





SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS 4160/page 3 of 3 Physical Examination

42 U-S-C-A- 12101 N.J.S.A. 18A:16-2; **18A:16-3**; **18A:16-5** N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.1; 6A:32-6.2; 6A:32-6.3

Adopted:





SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS R 4160/page 1 of 5 Physical Examination June 24 M

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 211 and 233]

R 4160 PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

A. Definitions

- 1. "Employee" or "staff member" means the holder of any full-time or part-time position of employment.
- 2. "Health history" means the record of a person's past health events obtained in writing, completed by the individual or their physician.
- 3. "Health screening" means the use of one or more diagnostic tools to test a person for the presence or precursors of a particular disease.
- 4. "Physical examination" means the assessment of an individual's health by a professional licensed to practice medicine or osteopathy, or by an advanced practice nurse or physician assistant. Physical examination includes specific procedures required by statute as stated in N.J.A.C. 6A:16-2.2.
- 5. "Physician assistant" means a health care professional licensed to practice medicine with physician supervision.
- B. Physical Examinations Candidates for Employment Who Have Received a Conditional Offer of Employment
 - 1. Candidates for employment who have received a conditional offer of employment shall be required to undergo a physical examination. The physical examination shall include, but is not limited to, a health history and health screenings to determine whether the candidate is able to perform with reasonable accommodation job-related functions pursuant to P.L. 101-336, Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA). The candidate for employment will be provided the Board's requirements for the physical examination.





SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS R 4160/page 2 of 5 Physical Examination

- a. A health history shall include, but is not limited to, the candidate's:
 - (1) Past serious illnesses and injuries;
 - (2) Current health problems;
 - (3) Allergies; and
 - (4) A record of immunizations.
- b. A health screening shall include, but is not limited to:
 - (1) Height;
 - (2) Weight;
 - (3) Pulse and respiratory rate;
 - (4) Hearing screening;
 - (5) Blood pressure;
 - (6) Vision screening;
- C. Medical Requirements Upon Employment
 - 1. The Board will follow the current New Jersey Department of Health Guidance for Tuberculosis (TB) Testing in New Jersey Schools. A Mantoux tuberculosis test shall be given upon employment of all newly hired staff members (full-time and part-time), and to all student teachers, school bus drivers on contract with the district, and to contractors or volunteers who have contact with students. Tuberculosis testing is not required for volunteers working with students less than twenty hours per month.





SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS R 4160/page 3 of 5 Physical Examination

- a. Tuberculosis testing is not required:
 - (1) For new staff members, student teachers, and contractors of the school district with a documented negative tuberculosis test result in the last six months or a documented positive tuberculosis test, regardless of when this test was done; or
 - (2) For a school district staff member transferring between school districts or from a non-public school within New Jersey with a documented tuberculosis test result upon his/her initial employment by a New Jersey school.
- b. Staff members, student teachers, contractors or volunteers who have contact with students and claim a religious exemption cannot be compelled to submit to tuberculosis testing. In these instances, a symptom assessment must be done (TB-8 Form). If TB-like symptoms are reported, a physician must document that the staff member, student teacher, contractor, or volunteer does not have an active disease.
 - (1) The school district shall determine the criteria essential to document a valid religious exemption.
- c. Procedures for the administration of the Mantoux tuberculosis test, interpretation of reactions, follow-up procedures, and reporting shall be conducted in accordance with the guidelines and requirements of the New Jersey Department of Health.
- 2. An individual support staff member may provide health-status information, including medications, that may be of value to medical personnel in the event of an emergency requiring treatment. In such instances, the support staff member may also choose to share with the Principal and, if desired, with the certified school nurse, information regarding current health status to assure ready access in a medical emergency pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(c).





SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS R 4160/page 4 of 5 Physical Examination

D. Health Records

- 1. All Hhealth records of candidates for employment who have received a conditional offer of employment and of current employees, including computerized records, shall be secured, stored, and maintained separately from other personnel files in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(d).
- 2. Health records **shall be the property of the Board and** may be shared only with authorized individuals in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:16-5 **and N.J.A.C. 6A:32-6.3(d)**.
- E. **Support Staff Member** Employees' Physical Examinations and Medical Updates
 - 1. **Support staff member** School employee physicals, examinations, and/or annual medical updates shall not require disclosure of HIV status.

F. Review of Examinations and Assessments

- 1. The results of a the physical examination or testing of a candidate for employment who has received a conditional offer of employment will be reviewed by the Superintendent and the school physician and/or Medical Review Officer, who, in consultation with the Superintendent, will to determine a the candidate's physical and mental fitness to function with reasonable accommodation in the position for which the candidate he/she has made application. That determination will be made a part of the candidate's application.
- G. Rescinding a Conditional Offer of Employment Notice to Candidates for Employment Who Receive a Conditional Offer of Employment
 - 1. All candidates for employment who receive a conditional offer of employment shall be informed by the district that:
 - a. An offer of employment by the Superintendent of Schools or designee is conditional upon completion of the Board's required physical examinations, tests, and assessments;





SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS R 4160/page 5 of 5 Physical Examination

- b. The required examinations, **tests**, and assessments will be used to determine the candidate's ability to perform with reasonable accommodations job-related functions pursuant to ADA; and
- c. If it is determined upon completing the examination(s), tests, or assessment(s) the candidate is unable to perform with reasonable accommodations job-related functions pursuant to the provisions of the ADA, the conditional offer of employment will be rescinded either by the Superintendent if the Board has not yet approved the appointment or by the Board, if the Board had approved the appointment at a Board meeting.

Adopted:





STUDENTS R 5200/page 1 of 15 Attendance June 24 M

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 176, 203, 205, 220, 229, and 233]

R 5200 ATTENDANCE

- A. Attendance Recording
 - 1. School Register (N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.1)
 - a. The Board of Education shall carefully and accurately track enrollment and attendance of all students in a manual school register format or in an electronic format of the school district's choosing.
 - b. The Commissioner of Education will issue and publish on the New Jersey Department of Education's (NJDOE) website guidance for recording student attendance in all public schools of the State operated by district Boards of Education, except adult high schools.
 - c. Student attendance shall be recorded in the school register during school hours on each day in session, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.3. An employee designated by the Superintendent shall keep in the school register, attendance of all students, and shall maintain the attendance records in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8 and the guidance issued by the Commissioner in accordance with at N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.1(c) and A.1.b. above.
 - d. A student who has been placed on home instruction shall have their attendance status recorded on the regular register for the program in which the student is enrolled. The student shall be marked absent for the period beginning the first day the student is unable to attend school and ending the day before the first instructional day at the student's place of confinement. Absences shall not be recorded for the student while on home instruction, provided the hours of instruction are no less than required by N.J.A.C. 6A:14-4.8 and 4.9 and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-10.1 and 10.2. The number of possible days in membership for a student on home instruction shall be the same as for other students in the program in which the student is enrolled.





STUDENTS R 5200/page 2 of 15 Attendance

- (1) "Days in membership" means the number of school days in session in which a student is enrolled in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-2.1. A student's membership begins on the first possible day of attendance following enrollment during the school year, notwithstanding the actual day the student was recorded as present for the first time.
- 2. Day in Session (N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.3)
 - a. A day in session shall be a day on which the school is scheduled to provide instruction and students are under the guidance and direction of a teacher(s) engaged in the teaching process. A day on which school is closed for reasons such as holidays and teachers' institutes, or inclement weather not under conditions set forth at N.J.A.C. 6A:32-13, shall not be considered a day in session.
 - b. A day in session shall consist of not less than four hours, exclusive of recess and lunch periods, except that one continuous session of two and one-half hours may be considered a full day in Kindergarten.
- 3. Student Attendance (N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.4)
 - a. For all State attendance submissions, a student shall be recorded as present, absent, or excused for a State-excused absence, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.4(e) and A.3.e. below, on every day the school is in session after the student enrolls until the date the student is transferred to another school or officially leaves the school district.
 - b. A record of attendance of all students shall be kept in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.1(c) and A.1.b. above. The employee designated by the Superintendent shall keep the attendance records according to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8 and the guidance issued by the Commissioner in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.1(c) and A.1.b. above.



STUDENTS R 5200/page 3 of 15 Attendance

- c. A student enrolled in a school shall be recorded in the school register as present if the student participates in instruction or instruction-related activities for at least half a day in session whether the student is physically on school grounds, at an approved off-grounds location, or in a virtual or remote instruction setting, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-13.
- d. A student enrolled in a school who is not participating in instruction or instruction-related activities pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.4(c) and A.3.c. above shall be recorded in the school register as absent, unless the student is recorded as a State-excused absence, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.4(e) and A.3.e. below.
- e. State-excused absences shall be as follows:
 - (1) Religious observance, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-14, 15, and 16.
 - (a) The Commissioner, with approval of the State Board of Education, shall annually prescribe a list of religious holidays on which it shall be mandatory to excuse students for religious observance upon the written request signed by the parent or person standing in loco parentis;
 - (2) Participation in observance of Veterans Day, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-13.2;
 - (3) Participation in district board of election membership activities, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-33;
 - (4) Take Our Children to Work Day;
 - (5) College visit(s), up to (5) five days per school year for students in grades eleven and twelve; and





STUDENTS R 5200/page 4 of 15 Attendance

- (6) Closure of a busing school district that prevents a student from having transportation to the receiving school; and-
- (7) Attendance at a civic event, one day per school year for students in grades six through twelve, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-33.2.
 - "Civic event" (a) means event sponsored by a government entity, a community-based organization, nonprofit organization that incorporates elements of service learning whereby students learn and develop through organized service. A civic event shall address an issue of public concern such as community health and safety environmental, economic, or community well-being in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:36-33.1.
 - (b) The parent of a student shall provide a signed written notice of an intended excused absence to attend a civic event at least five school days in advance of the intended excused absence and such other documentation as the Superintendent deems necessary to prove that the student meets the requirements for an excused absence pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-33.2.b.
- f. For absences that do not meet the criteria at N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.4(e) and A.3.e. above, the Board may adopt policies that establish locally approved or excused absences consistent with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6 for the purposes of expectations and consequences regarding truancy, student conduct, promotion, retention, and the award of course credit. However, an absence designated as excused by the Board pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6 shall be considered as an absence in the submission to the State for the purpose of chronic absenteeism reporting, as set forth at N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.6.



STUDENTS R 5200/page 5 of 15 Attendance

4. Average Daily Attendance – (N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.5)

The average daily attendance rate in a district school or program of instruction for a school year shall be the total number of the days present of all enrolled students, divided by the number of days in membership of all enrolled students. The student average daily attendance means the total number of days that a student is present in the school divided by the total possible number of days in session.

- 5. Absentee and Chronic Absenteeism Rates (N.J.A.C. 6A:32-8.6)
 - a. A student's absentee rate shall be determined by subtracting the student's total number of days present from the student's days in membership and dividing the result by the student's days in membership.
 - (1) State-excused absences shall not be included in a student's days in membership for purposes of calculating a student's absentee rate.
 - b. If a student's absentee rate is equal to or greater than ten percent, the student shall be identified as chronically absent.
 - c. Each school with ten percent or more of its enrolled students identified as chronically absent shall develop a corrective action plan to improve absenteeism rates. In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:38-25.1, the school will annually review and revise the corrective action plan and present the revisions to the Board, until the percentage of students who are chronically absent is less than ten percent.
- B. Unexcused Absences That Count Toward Truancy/Excused Absences for Board Policy
 - 1. Notwithstanding the requirement of reporting student absences in the school register for State and Federal reporting purposes, "excused" and "unexcused" student absences for the purpose of expectations and consequences regarding truancy, student conduct, promotion, retention, and the award of course credit is a Board decision outlined in Policy 5200 **Attendance** and this Regulation.





STUDENTS R 5200/page 6 of 15 Attendance

- 2. N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6(a)3 requires the Board of Education policies and procedures contain, at a minimum, a definition of unexcused absence that counts toward truancy, student conduct, promotion, retention, and the award of course credit.
 - a. "An unexcused absence that counts toward truancy" is a student's absence from school for a full or a portion of a day for any reason that is not an "excused absence" as defined in B.2.b. below.
 - b. "An excused absence" is a student's absence from school for a full day or a portion of a day for the observance of a religious holiday pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-14 through 16, or any absence for the reasons listed below:
 - The student's illness supported by notification to the school by the student's parent;
 - The student's required attendance in court;
 - Where appropriate, when consistent with Individualized Education Programs, the Individuals with Disabilities Act, accommodation plans under 29 U.S.C. §§ 794 and 705(20), and individualized health care plans;
 - The student's suspension from school;
 - Family illness or death supported by notification to the school by the student's parent;
 - College visit(s), up to (5) five days per school year for students in grades eleven and twelve;
 - Interviews with a prospective employer or with an admissions officer of an institution of higher education;
 - Examination for a driver's license:
 - Necessary and unavoidable medical or dental appointments that cannot be scheduled at a time other than the school day;





STUDENTS R 5200/page 7 of 15 Attendance

- Take Our Children to Work Day;
- Religious observance, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-14 through 16;
- Participation in observance of Veterans Day, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-13.2;
- Participation in district board of election membership activities, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-33;
- Attendance at a civic event(s), pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-33.2;
- Closure of a busing school district that prevents a student from having transportation to the receiving school;
- An absence considered excused by the Commissioner of Education and/or a NJDOE New Jersey Department of Education rule;
- An absence for a reason not listed above, but deemed excused by the Principal upon a written request by the student's parent stating the reason for the absence and requesting permission for the absence to be an excused absence.
- 3. "Unexcused tardiness" may constitute an unexcused absence that counts toward truancy in accordance with Policy 5240.
- C. Notice to School of a Student's Absence
 - 1. The parent or adult student shall notify the school office before the school day when the student will not be in school. However, notice for attendance at a civic event shall be provided in accordance with the procedure set forth in N.J.S.A. 18A:36-33.2.b. and A.3.e.(7)(b) above.





STUDENTS R 5200/page 8 of 15 Attendance

- 2. The parent of the student or an adult student who will attend the morning session, but will not attend the afternoon session shall provide notice to the school office before the start of the afternoon session.
- 3. The parent of a student or an adult student shall notify the school office of a future absence if the absence is foreseeable.
- 4. In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:36-25.6, if a student is determined to be absent from school without valid excuse, and if the reason for the student's absence is unknown to school personnel, the Principal or designee shall immediately attempt to contact the student's parent to notify the parent of the absence and determine the reason for the absence.

D. Readmission to School After an Absence

- 1. A student returning from an absence of (3) three consecutive school days any length of time may be required to must provide a written statement to the Principal or designee that is dated and signed by the parent or adult student listing the reason for the absence.
- 2. A student who has been absent by reason of having or being suspected of having a communicable disease may be required to present to the school nurse written evidence of being free of a communicable disease.
- 3. The Superintendent of Schools or designee may require a student who has been absent from school due to a suspension or other reason concerning the student's conduct to receive a medical examination by a physician regarding the student's physical and/or mental fitness to return to school.
 - a. The Superintendent or designee will notify the student's parent of the specific requirements of the medical examination prior to the student's return to school.



STUDENTS R 5200/page 9 of 15 Attendance

E. Instruction

- 1. Teachers will cooperate in the preparation of home assignments for students who anticipate an absence of (3) three school days duration.
- 2. Students absent for any reason are expected to make up the work missed. The parent or student is responsible for requesting missed assignments and any assistance required. Teachers will provide make-up assignments as necessary.
- 3. In general, students will be allowed a reasonable amount of time as determined by the teacher to make up the work missed.
- 4. A student who missed a test or an exam shall be offered an opportunity to take the test, exam, or an appropriate alternate test.
- 5. A student who anticipates an absence due to a temporary or chronic health condition may be eligible for home instruction in accordance with Policy 2412 **Home Instruction Due to Health Condition**. The parent must request home instruction.

F. Denial of Course Credit

- 1. The teacher will determine the credit to be awarded a student for make-up work. Where class participation is a factor in the learning process, the teacher may consider a student's absence in determining a final grade, except absences for the observance of a religious holiday or absence for a student's suspension from school will not adversely affect the student's grade. The teacher may record an incomplete grade for a student who has not had a full opportunity to make up missed work.
- 2. A secondary student may be dropped from a course or denied course credit when the secondary student has been absent from:
 - a full year course (14) fourteen
 - a half year course (7) seven
 - a quarter year course (4) four

or more of the class sessions, whatever the reason for the absence, except that absences for the observance of a religious holiday, absences for those excused in accordance with the reporting





STUDENTS R 5200/page 10 of 15 Attendance

requirements of the school register, or absences caused by a student's suspension will not count toward the total.

3. An elementary student may be retained at grade level, in accordance with Policy 5410 - **Promotion and Retention**, when the student has been absent (30) thirty or more school days, whatever the reason for the absence, except that absences for the observance of a religious holiday, absences for those excused in accordance with the reporting requirements of the school register, and absences due to student's suspension will not count toward the total.

Exceptions to this rule may be made for students who have demonstrated through completion of home assignments and/or home instruction that they have mastered the proficiencies established for the assigned courses of study.

- G. School District Response To Unexcused Absences During the School Year That Count Toward Truancy (N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6(a)4.)
 - 1. For up to four cumulative unexcused absences that count toward truancy, the Principal or designee shall:
 - a. Make a reasonable attempt to notify the student's parents of each unexcused absence prior to the start of the following school day;
 - b. Make a reasonable attempt to determine the cause of the unexcused absence, including through contact with the student's parent(s);
 - c. Identify, in consultation with the student's parents, needed action designed to address patterns of unexcused absences, if any, and to have the child return to school and maintain regular attendance;
 - d. Proceed in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 9:6-1 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-11, if a potential missing or abused child situation is detected; and
 - e. Cooperate with law enforcement and other authorities and agencies, as appropriate;





STUDENTS R 5200/page 11 of 15 Attendance

- 2. For between five and nine cumulative unexcused absences that count toward truancy, the Principal or designee shall:
 - a. Make a reasonable attempt to notify the student's parent(s) of each unexcused absence prior to the start of the following school day;
 - b. Make a reasonable attempt to determine the cause of the unexcused absence, including through contact with the student's parent(s);
 - c. Evaluate the appropriateness of action taken pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6(a)4.i.(3) and G.1.c. above;
 - d. Develop an action plan to establish outcomes based upon the student's patterns of unexcused absences and to specify the interventions for supporting the student's return to school and regular attendance, which may include any or all of the following:
 - (1) Refer or consult with the building's Intervention and Referral Services Team, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-8;
 - (2) Conduct testing, assessments, or evaluations of the student's academic, behavioral, and health needs;
 - (3) Consider an alternate educational placement;
 - (4) Make a referral to or coordinate with a community-based social and health provider agency or other community resource;
 - (5) Refer to a court or court program pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6(a)4.iv. and G.4. below;
 - (6) Proceed in accordance with N.J.S.A. 9:6-1 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-11, if a potential missing or abused child situation is detected; and
 - (7) Engage the student's family.





STUDENTS R 5200/page 12 of 15 Attendance

- e. Cooperate with law enforcement and other authorities and agencies, as appropriate.
- 3. For cumulative unexcused absences of ten or more that count toward truancy, a student between the ages of six and sixteen is truant, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:38-25, and the Principal or designee shall:
 - a. Make a determination regarding the need for a court referral for the truancy, per N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6(a)4.iv. and G.4. below;
 - b. Continue to consult with the parent and the involved agencies to support the student's return to school and regular attendance;
 - c. Cooperate with law enforcement and other authorities and agencies, as appropriate; and
 - d. Proceed in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:38-28 through 31, Article 3B, Compelling Attendance at School, and other applicable State and Federal statutes, as required; and
- 4. A court referral may be made as follows:
 - a. When unexcused absences that count toward truancy are determined by school officials to be violations of the compulsory education law, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:38-25, and the Board's of Education's policies, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6(a), the parent may be referred to Municipal Court;
 - (1) A written report of the actions the school has taken regarding the student's attendance shall be forwarded to the Municipal Court; or
 - b. When there is evidence of a juvenile-family crisis, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 2A:4A-22.g., the student may be referred to Superior Court, Chancery Division, Family Part;





STUDENTS R 5200/page 13 of 15 Attendance

- (1) A written report of the actions the school has taken regarding the student's attendance shall be forwarded to the Juvenile-Family Crisis Intervention Unit.
- 5. For a student with a disability, the attendance plan and its punitive and remedial procedures shall be applied, where applicable, in accordance with the student's Individual Education Program (IEP), pursuant to 20 U-S-C- §§1400 et seq., the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act; the procedural protections set forth in N.J.A.C. 6A:14; accommodation plan under 29 U-S-C- §§794 and 705(20); and individualized healthcare plan and individualized emergency healthcare plan, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-2.3(b)3.xii.
- 6. All receiving schools pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:14-7.1(a), shall act in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6(a)4.i. and G.l. above for each student with up to four cumulative unexcused absences that count toward truancy.
 - a. For each student attending a receiving school with five or more cumulative unexcused absences that count toward truancy, the absences shall be reported to the sending school district.
 - (1) The sending school district shall proceed in accordance with the Board's of Education's policies and procedures pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6(a) and the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6(a)4.ii. through iv. and G.2. through G.4. above and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-7.6(b) and G.5. above, as appropriate.

H. Discipline

1. Students may be denied participation in co-curricular activities and/or athletic competition if the Board establishes attendance standards for participation.



8

REGULATION GUIDE

STUDENTS R 5200/page 14 of 15 Attendance

2. No student who is absent from school for observance of a religious holiday may be deprived of any award or of eligibility for or opportunity to compete for any award because of the absence.

I. Recording Attendance

- 1. Teachers must accurately record the students present, tardy, or absent each day in each session or each class. Attendance records must also record students' attendance at out-of-school curricular events such as field trips.
- 2. A record shall be maintained of each excused absence and each unexcused absence that counts toward truancy as defined in Policy 5200 **Attendance** and this Regulation.
- 3. A student's absence for observance of a religious holiday will not be recorded as such on any transcript or application or employment form.

J. Appeal

- 1. Students may be subject to appropriate discipline for their school attendance record.
- 2. A parent of a student or an adult student who has been retained at grade level for excessive absences may appeal that action in accordance with Policy 5410 Promotion and Retention.
- 3. A parent of a student or an adult student who has been dropped from a course and/or denied course credit for excessive absences may appeal that action in accordance with the following procedures:
 - a. The student shall file Aa written appeal shall be filed with to the Principal or designee within five school days of receiving notice of the action. The appeal should state the reasons for each absence, any documentation that may support reducing the number of absences for the purposes of course credit, and reasons why the student should either continue to be enrolled in the course or receive course credit for a class the student completed.





STUDENTS R 5200/page 15 of 15 Attendance

- b. The Principal or designee will respond in writing no later than seven school days after receiving the **written** student's appeal.
- c. If the parent or adult student is not satisfied, the parent or adult student may submit a written request to the Principal for consideration by an Attendance Review Committee.
- d. In response to On a student's request for consideration by an Attendance Review Committee, the Principal shall convene an Attendance Review Committee. The Attendance Review Committee shall meet informally to hear the student's appeal. The student's parent, the student, and teacher(s) may attend the meeting.
- e. The Attendance Review Committee shall decide the appeal and inform the **parent and** student in writing within seven school days of the meeting.
- f. The **parent or adult** student may appeal an adverse decision of the Attendance Review Committee to the Superintendent, the Board of Education, and the Commissioner of Education in accordance with Policy 5710 Student Grievance and N.J.S.A. 18A. An appeal to the Attendance Review Committee shall be considered to have exhausted the first two steps of the grievance procedure outlined in Policy 5710.

K. Attendance Records

1. Attendance records for the school district and each school will be maintained and attendance rates will be calculated as required by the **NJDOE** New Jersey Department of Education. The school district will comply with all attendance requirements and any improvement plans as required by the **NJDOE** Department of Education.







STUDENTS 5337/page 1 of 6 Service Animals June 24

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 207, 217, and 233]

5337 SERVICE ANIMALS

In compliance with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) as amended by the ADA Amendments Act of 2008, it is the Policy of the Board of Education to permit use of a service animal by an individual with a disability in all areas of the district where the public is normally permitted: in district buildings; on district property; and on vehicles owned, leased, or controlled by the district in accordance with —(28 CFR §35.136.)

A. Definitions

- 1. "Act" means the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) as amended by the ADA Amendments Act of 2008.
- 2. "Designated administrator" means Principal or person designated by the Principal to coordinate these activities.
- 3. "District" means this school district.
- 4. "Handler" means the animal's owner who is an individual with a disability or a person, such as a trainer, assisting the owner with control of the service animal.
- 5. "Service animal" means a dog individually trained to do work or perform a specific job or task for the benefit of an individual with a disability, including a physical, sensory, psychiatric, intellectual, or other mental disability in accordance with —(28 CFR §36.104.)
 - a. Other species of animals, whether wild or domestic, trained or untrained, are not service animals for the purposes of this definition.
 - b. The work or tasks performed by a service animal must be directly related to the individual's disability (e.g. navigation, alerting physical support and assistance, preventing or interrupting impulsive or destructive behaviors).





STUDENTS 5337/page 2 of 6 Service Animals

c. Work or tasks for the purposes of this definition do not include the provision of emotional support, well-being, comfort, therapy, companionship, or crime deterrence.

B. Generally Rules

- 1. The district shall permit the use of a service animal by an individual with a disability unless:
 - a. The animal is out of control and the animal's handler does not take effective action to control it;
 - b. The animal is not housebroken.
- 2. A student with a disability, including autism, shall be permitted access for a service animal in school buildings, including the classroom, on school buses, and on school grounds.
- 32. The service animal shall be under a handler's control at all times by use of a leash, tether, voice control, signal, or other suitable means in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:46-13.3 and A service animal shall have a harness, leash, or other tether, unless either the handler is unable because of a disability to use a harness, leash or other tether, or the use of a harness, leash, or other tether would interfere with the service animal's safe, effective performance of work or tasks, in which case the service animal must be otherwise under the handler's control (e.g. voice control, signals, or other effective means). (28 CFR §35.136(d).)
- 43. If an animal is properly excluded, the district shall give the individual with a disability the opportunity to participate in the service, program, or activity without having the service animal on the premises in accordance with —(28 CFR §35.136(b).)
- 54. If there are places in the district where it is determined to be unsafe for a handler and service animal, reasonable accommodations will be provided to assure the individual with a disability has equal access to the activity.





STUDENTS 5337/page 3 of 6 Service Animals

- 65. A school official may inquire as to whether the service animal is required due to a disability and what task or work the service animal has been trained to perform, unless the student's disability and the work or task that the service animal will perform are readily apparent in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:46-13.3. Unless the need for a service animal is readily apparent, the individual with a disability or his/her parent will be required to provide the district with information that:
 - a. The service animal is required because of a disability; and
 - b. What work or task the animal has been trained to perform.
- 76. The district may not require documentation, including proof that the animal has been certified, trained, or licensed as a service animal; nor that the dog demonstrates its ability to perform the work or task in accordance with ... (28 CFR §35.136(f).)
- 87. Individuals with a disability who have service animals are not exempt from local animal control or public health requirements.
- 98. A school official may require: Service animals must be licensed and registered in accordance with State and local laws.
 - a. Certification from a veterinarian that the service animal is properly vaccinated and does not have a contagious disease that may harm students or staff; and
 - b. Documentation that any license required by the municipality in which the student resides has been obtained for the service animal.
- C. Delegation of Responsibility
 - 1. The school shall not be responsible or liable for the care or supervision of the service animal. The district is not responsible for the care or supervision of a service animal, in accordance with 28 CFR §35.136(e).





STUDENTS 5337/page 4 of 6 Service Animals

- a. The district is not responsible to pay for or provide a handler to aid the individual with a disability in the control of the service animal.
- b. The school shall provide reasonable accommodations to allow the handler to provide for the care and feeding of the service animal while on school grounds or at a school function. The district is responsible to provide assistance to an individual with a disability in performing the tasks required of the individual for the care and maintenance of the service animal.
- 2. If the district normally charges individuals for damage they cause, an individual with a disability may be charged for damage caused by **their** his or her service animal. in accordance with (28 CFR §35.136(h).)
- 3. The district will designate relief areas for the service animal which will be included in mobility training and orientation of students and animals new to the school.

D. Notification and Responsibilities

- 1. In the event a service animal will be introduced as part of the school community, the designated administrator will develop a comprehensive implementation plan prior to introduction of the service animal into the school to include:
 - a. Notification to parents of students who may be in contact with the service animal;
 - b. Appropriate accommodations:
 - (1) For students who are allergic to the service animal; and/or
 - (2) For students who have fears regarding the service animal.





STUDENTS 5337/page 5 of 6 Service Animals

- c. The teaching of appropriate etiquette regarding service animals to include:
 - (1) Never pet a service animal while it is working;
 - (2) Never feed a working service animal;
 - (3) Do not deliberately startle, tease, or taunt a service animal; and
 - (4) Do not hesitate to ask the handler if **they** he or she would like assistance regarding directions for navigating the facility.
- 2. The use of a service animal introduced as part of the school community will require inclusion into the student's Individualized Education Plan (IEP) or the student's Section 504 Accommodation Plan.
- 3. The district may request, but cannot require, the owner of a service animal introduced as part of the school community and, as included in the student's IEP or Section 504 Accommodation Plan, maintain liability insurance for the service animal. The School Business Administrator/Board Secretary will ensure the school district has appropriate insurance in the event a service animal is introduced as part of the school community.

E. Miniature Horses

- 1. Miniature horses, although not included in the Act under the definition of "service animal," may only be permitted if individually trained to do work or perform tasks for the benefit of the individual with a disability and if they meet the assessment factors outlined in 3. below- in accordance with (28 CFR §35.136(i).)
- 2. Ponies and full size horses are not considered miniature horses.
- 3. Assessment factors to determine whether the district can reasonably modify its policies, practices, and procedures to allow for the use of miniature horses on its property, facilities, or vehicles include:





STUDENTS 5337/page 6 of 6 Service Animals

- a. Type, size, and weight of the miniature horse and whether the facility can accommodate those features;
- b. Whether the handler has sufficient control of the miniature horse;
- c. Whether the miniature horse is housebroken; and
- d. Whether the miniature horse's presence compromises legitimate safety requirements necessary for safe operation.
- 4. All requirements for the use of service animals also apply to the use of miniature horses.

N.J.S.A. 18A:46-13.3 28 CFR §35.136 28 CFR §36.104

Adopted:





STUDENTS 5350/page 1 of 4 Student Suicide Prevention June 24 M

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 193, 209, 215, and 233]

5350 STUDENT SUICIDE PREVENTION

The Board of Education recognizes that depression and self-destruction are problems of increasing severity among students. Students under severe stress cannot benefit fully from the educational program and may pose a threat to themselves or others.

The Board directs all school district staff members to be alert to a student who exhibits warning signs of self-destruction or who threatens or attempts suicide. Any such warning signs or the report of such warning signs from another student or staff member shall be taken with the utmost seriousness and reported immediately to the Principal or designee.

The Principal or designee shall immediately contact the parent(s) of the student exhibiting warning signs of suicide to inform the parent(s) the student will be referred to the Child Study Team or a Suicide Intervention Team, appointed by the Superintendent or designee, for a preliminary assessment. Upon completion of the preliminary assessment, the Principal or designee shall meet with the parent(s) to review the assessment. Based on the preliminary assessment, the parent(s) may be required to obtain medical or psychiatric services for the student. In the event the parent(s) objects to the recommendation or indicates an unwillingness to cooperate in the best interests of the student, the Principal or designee will contact the New Jersey Department of Children and Families, Division of Child Protection and Permanency to request intervention on the student's behalf.

In the event the student is required to obtain medical or psychiatric services, the parent(s) will be required to submit to the Superintendent a written medical clearance from a licensed medical professional, selected by the parent(s) and approved by the Superintendent, indicating the student has received medical services, does not present a risk to themselves or others, and is cleared to return to school. The written medical clearance may be reviewed by a Board of Education healthcare professional before the student is permitted to return to school. The parent(s) shall be required to authorize their healthcare professional(s) to release relevant medical information to the school district's healthcare professional, if requested.





STUDENTS 5350/page 2 of 4 Student Suicide Prevention

In accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:14-1.1(d), special education and related services shall be provided to students with disabilities at public expense, with no charge to the parents. A clearance by a psychiatrist or other medical professional as a requirement to return to school is considered an assessment provided at public expense. The district shall not require the parents to incur the cost of psychiatric clearance.

Any school district staff member, volunteer, or intern with reasonable cause to suspect or believe that a student has attempted or completed suicide, shall immediately report the information to the Principal or designee or their immediate supervisor who will immediately report it to the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee shall promptly report it online to the New Jersey Department of Children and Families, or as otherwise required by the Department of Children and Families in accordance with N.J.S.A. 30:9A-24. In accordance with N.J.S.A. 30:9A-24i, any person who reports an attempted or completed suicide shall have immunity from any civil or criminal liability on account of the report, unless the person has acted in bad faith or with malicious purpose.

In accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:6-111 and 18A:6-112, as part of the required professional development for teachers as outlined in N.J.A.C. 6A:9C-3 et seq., every teaching staff member must complete at least two hours of instruction in suicide prevention, to be provided by a licensed health care professional with training and experience in mental health issues, in each professional development period. The instruction in suicide prevention shall include information on the relationship between the risk of suicide and incidents of harassment, intimidation, and bullying and information on reducing the risk of suicide in students who are members of communities identified as having members at high risk of suicide.

Not including teaching staff members subject to the requirements of N.J.S.A. 18A:6-112.a. and not including licensed mental health care professionals, a school employee or an employee of a contracted service provider who has regular and direct contact with students, as determined by the Board, shall complete a one-time training program in suicide prevention, awareness, and response identified by the New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:6-112.c. A person subject to the requirements of N.J.S.A. 18A:6-112.b. shall complete the required training program not less than twelve months from the date of the identification by the NJDOE of training programs or twelve months from the person's date of hire, whichever occurs later.





STUDENTS 5350/page 3 of 4 Student Suicide Prevention

Not less than twelve months following the date of the identification by the NJDOE of the training programs or not less than twelve months from the person's date of hire, and annually thereafter, the district shall provide to their employees who are subject to the requirements of N.J.S.A. 18A:6-112.a. or b., in a hard copy paper form or in an electronic form, guidelines on the district's reporting and suicide prevention, awareness, and response protocols including, but not limited to, contact information for each school's designated staff who should be notified whenever an employee believes a student may be at risk for suicide.

Each person who is required pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:6-112.a. or b. to complete a suicide prevention training program shall have a duty to warn and protect when the following conditions exist:

- 1. A student has communicated to that person a clearly identifiable threat of imminent, serious physical violence against oneself and the circumstances are such that a reasonable person would believe the student intended to carry out the threat; or
- 2. The circumstances are such that a reasonable person would believe the student intended to carry out an act of imminent, serious physical violence against oneself.

A person acting in good faith and who takes reasonable steps to discharge a duty to warn and protect shall be immune from civil and criminal liability in regard to that disclosure.

Any school district staff member, volunteer, or intern with reasonable cause to suspect or believe that a student has attempted or completed suicide, shall immediately report the information to the Principal or designee or their immediate supervisor who will immediately report it to the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee shall promptly report it online to the New Jersey Department of Children and Families, or as otherwise required by the Department of Children and Families in accordance with N.J.S.A. 30:9A-24. In accordance with N.J.S.A. 30:9A-24.i., any person who reports an attempted or completed suicide shall have immunity from any civil or criminal liability on account of the report, unless the person has acted in bad faith or with malicious purpose.





STUDENTS 5350/page 4 of 4 Student Suicide Prevention

The Superintendent shall prepare and disseminate guidelines to assist school district staff members in recognizing the warning signs of a student who may be contemplating suicide, to respond to a threat or attempted suicide, and to prevent contagion when a student commits suicide.

N.J.S.A. 18A:6-111; 18A:6-112 N.J.S.A. 30:9A-23; 30:9A-24 N.J.A.C. 6A:9C-3 et seq.; **6A:14-1.1**





OPERATIONS 8420/page 1 of 6 Emergency and Crisis Situations June 24

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 189, 191, 221, 224, 227, and 233]

8420 EMERGENCY AND CRISIS SITUATIONS

The Board of Education recognizes its responsibility to provide for the safety and security in each school building in the district. The district shall will develop and implement comprehensive written plans, procedures, and mechanisms that to provide for safety and security in the district's public elementary and secondary schools. Plans and procedures, which shall be in written form, and mechanisms shall provide for, at a minimum: the protection of the health, safety, security, and welfare of the school population; the prevention of, intervention in, response to, and recovery from emergency and crisis situations; the establishment and maintenance of a climate of civility; and support services for staff, students, and their families, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1(a).

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:41-6, "sSchool security drill" means an exercise, other than a fire drill, to practice procedures that respond to an emergency situation including, but not limited to, a bomb threat, non-fire evacuation, lockdown, or active shooter situation and that is similar in duration to a fire drill.

The Superintendent of Schools or designee shall consult with law enforcement agencies, health and social services provider agencies, emergency management planners, and school and **other** community resources, as appropriate, in the development of the school district's plans, procedures, and mechanisms for school safety and security **in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1(b)**. The plans, procedures, and mechanisms shall be consistent with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1 and the format and content established by the Domestic Security Preparedness Task Force, pursuant to N.J.S.A. App. A:9-64 et seq., and the Commissioner of Education. **The plans, procedures,** and **mechanisms** shall be reviewed annually, and updated as appropriate.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:41-15, in developing its districtwide school safety and security plan, the district shall: demonstrate that it has considered the individual needs of each student with a disability, as enumerated in the students' individualized education programs (IEP), individualized health care plans, 504 plans, or, in the case of students with disabilities enrolled in nonpublic schools, service plans pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:46-2.15; and incorporate protocols into the districtwide school safety and security plan for





OPERATIONS 8420/page 2 of 6 Emergency and Crisis Situations

communicating the individual needs of each student with a disability, when appropriate and in compliance with the "Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974," (20 USC §1232g), to third parties including, but not limited to, first responders and emergency management agencies.

A copy of the school district's school safety and security plan shall be disseminated to all school district employees pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1(c). New employees shall receive a copy of the school district's safety and security plan, as appropriate, within sixty days of the effective date of their employment. All employees shall be notified in writing, as appropriate, regarding updates and changes to the school safety and security plan.

The school district shall develop and provide an in-service training program for all school district employees to enable them to recognize and appropriately respond to safety and security concerns, including emergencies and crises, consistent with the school district's plans, procedures, and mechanisms for school safety and security and the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1. New employees shall receive the this in-service training, as appropriate, within sixty days of the effective date of their employment. The This in-service training program for all employees shall be reviewed annually and updated, as appropriate.

The Board shall ensure individuals employed in the district in a substitute capacity are provided with information and training on the district's practices and procedures on school safety and security including instruction on school security drills, evacuation procedures, and emergency response protocols in the district and the school building where the individuals are employed in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:41-7.b. In the event an individual is employed in a substitute capacity in the district at the time the school safety and security training is being provided to full-time employees pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:41-7.a., the district shall include the individual in the training.

Any information or training provided pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:41-7 shall address the unique needs of students with disabilities in the event of a fire drill, school security drill, or actual emergency situation. All full-time employees and individuals employed in the district in a substitute capacity shall be made aware of any anticipated mobility, sensory, medical, social, communication, emotional, regulatory, and decision-making support needs of students in the care of the employee and any supports, modifications,





OPERATIONS 8420/page 3 of 6 Emergency and Crisis Situations

accommodations, and services to be provided to students, as enumerated in their IEPs, individualized health care plans, 504 plans, or service plans pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:46-2.15.

The district shall ensure a student's unique mobility, sensory, medical, social, communication, emotional, regulatory, and decision-making needs in the event of a fire drill, school security drill, or an actual emergency situation that may occur on school grounds is maintained in the student record. The documentation maintained in the student record shall indicate whether or not the student is able to safely and fully participate in fire drills or school security drills without the use of supplementary supports, modifications, accommodations, or services, or if any accommodations are needed, including determining areas of refuge during an emergency, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:46-2.15.a.

If it is determined a student requires supplementary supports, modifications, accommodations, or services in order to safely and fully participate in a fire drill or school security drill, a written plan shall be maintained in the student record, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:46-2.15.b. The written plan shall: describe the anticipated mobility, sensory, medical, social, communication, emotional, regulatory, and decision-making support needs of the student during a fire drill or school security drill and during an actual emergency situation; describe the supports, modifications, accommodations, and services to be provided to the student during a fire drill or school security drill and during an actual emergency situation; and describe the role of school employees in supporting the student during a fire drill or school security drill and during an actual emergency situation, including the need for any specific training of school employees. The district shall on a regular basis, but not less than once annually, perform a review of any determinations made pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:46-2.15 to evaluate the school security needs of a student.

Every Principal of a school of two or more rooms, or of a school of one room, when located above the first story of a building, shall have at least one fire drill and one school security drill each month within the school hours, including any summer months during which the school is open for instructional programs., and shall require all teachers of all schools, Employees of the district, whether occupying buildings of one or more stories, shall to keep all exterior doors and exits of their respective rooms and buildings unlocked during the school hours, except locked at all times except when necessary to comply with the





OPERATIONS 8420/page 4 of 6 Emergency and Crisis Situations

requirements set forth in the Uniform Fire Code, including applicable requirements during an emergency lockdown or an emergency lockdown drill. All students and staff shall fully participate in each drill conducted to the greatest extent practicable and, when appropriate, utilize procedures for assisting in the rescue of persons unable to use the general means of egress to ensure that participation does not pose a safety risk. Where school buildings have been provided with fire escapes, they shall be used by a part or all of the students performing every fire drill. An actual fire or school security emergency that occurs at a school during the month and that includes activities which are the equivalent of a drill shall be considered a school security drill for the purposes of meeting the requirements of N.J.S.A. 18A:41-1.

Every school in the district shall conduct a school security drill within the first fifteen days of the beginning of the school year. In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:41-7a., nNotwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, the school district shall ensure that a school security drill that occurs when students are present:

- 1. Includes clear, developmentally and age-appropriate messaging to students and staff at the conclusion of the drill that the event is a drill and that no current danger exists;
- 2. Does not expose students to content or imaging that is not developmentally or age-appropriate;
- 3. Is paired with trauma-informed approaches to address any student inquiries or concerns which may arise as a result of a school security drill;
- 4. Does not include the use of fake blood, real or prop firearms, or the simulations of gun shots, explosions, or other sounds or visuals that may induce panic or a traumatic response from a student or school district employee;
- 5. Does not require a student to role play as a victim, but may include first aid training in which students participate; and





OPERATIONS 8420/page 5 of 6 Emergency and Crisis Situations

6. Is accessible to students with disabilities and mental health conditions, and provides all necessary accommodations for these students.

The Principal or designee shall provide written notification to the parent of a student enrolled in the school following completion of a school security drill, which notice shall be provided to the parent by no later than the end of the school day on which the school security drill is conducted.

The Principal or designee will provide local law enforcement or other emergency responders, as appropriate, with a friendly notification at least forty-eight hours prior to holding a school security drill. A law enforcement officer shall be present at a minimum of one school security drill in each school year in order to make recommendations on any improvements or changes to school security drill procedures that the officer may deem advisable in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:41-1. The school district may permit emergency personnel access to the buildings and grounds of its schools for school security drills that are scheduled outside of school hours and during such times as students are not present, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:41-7a.c.

The school district shall review and update its school security drill procedures using a process that coincides with the review of the school safety and security plan developed pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1 and collects input from emergency personnel; parents of students enrolled in the school district; teachers and staff employed in the district; mental health professionals; and student government representatives from multiple grade levels, **pursuant to N.J.S.A.** 18A:41-7a.d.

The school district shall annually track data on such measures and information as required by the Commissioner of Education, and shall report the data to the Commissioner, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:41-7a.e.

Such drills and in-service training programs shall be conducted in accordance with a building security drill guide and training materials that educate school employees on proper evacuation and lockdown procedures in a variety of emergency situations on school grounds in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1.





OPERATIONS 8420/page 6 of 6 Emergency and Crisis Situations

The school district will be required to annually submit a security drill statement of assurance attesting to the completion of monthly school security drills to the New Jersey Department of Education/County Office of Education by June 30 of each school year, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:30 App.A. Each school in the district will be required to complete and retain a security drill record form as required by the New Jersey Department of Education.

N.J.S.A. 2C:33-3

N.J.S.A. App.A.:9-86

N.J.S.A. 18A:41-1; 18A:41-2; 18A:41-6; 18A:41-7; 18A:41-7a.;

18A:41-15; 18A:46-2.15

N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.1; 6A:30 App.A.





OPERATIONS 8467/page 1 of 4 Firearms and Weapons June 24

[See POLICY ALERT No. 233]

8467 **FIREARMS AND** WEAPONS

The Board of Education prohibits the possession, use, or exchange of any **firearm or** weapon in any school building, on school grounds, at any school-sponsored event, and on school sanctioned transportation except as the possession and use of a **firearm or** weapon is authorized by law and required in the performance of the possessor's duty.

For the purpose of this Ppolicy, "weapon" means items enumerated in N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(r), except a firearm as defined by N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(f). anything readily capable of lethal use or of inflicting serious bodily injury. "Weapon" includes, but is not limited to, all firearms, knives, dangerous instruments intended to inflict harm, components that can be readily assembled into a weapon, explosive devices, and imitation firearms. For the purposes of this Ppolicy, "firearm" means those items enumerated in N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(f) and 18 U-S-C- §921.

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(b), whenever a school employee develops reason to believe a firearm, as defined in N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(f) and 18 USC §921, or other deadly weapon, whether enumerated in N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(r), except a firearm as defined in N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(f) and 18 USC §921, has unlawfully been brought onto school grounds or a student or other person is in unlawful possession of a firearm or other deadly weapon on or off school grounds, or a student or other person has committed an offense with or while in possession of a firearm on or off school grounds or during school operating hours, the matter shall be reported as soon as possible to the Principal or designee, or in the absence of the Principal or designee, to the staff member responsible at the time of the alleged violation. Either the Principal or designee or the responsible staff member shall notify the Superintendent, who in turn shall notify as soon as possible the county prosecutor or other law enforcement official designated by the county prosecutor to receive such information. The Superintendent or designee shall provide to the county prosecutor or designee all known information concerning the matter, including the identity of the student or staff member involved.





OPERATIONS 8467/page 2 of 4 **Firearms and** Weapons

Any student or school employee who has reasonable grounds to suspect the presence of a weapon prohibited by this policy shall immediately report his/her suspicion to the The **Principal** or (same as previous sentence) shall conduct an appropriate search in accordance with Policy No. 5770 - Student Right of Privacy and, if appropriate and feasible, confiscate any firearm or weapon discovered in the course of the search. The Principal or designee He/she shall, if appropriate and feasible, may summon the aid of law enforcement officials officers in the conduct of the search. Any school employee who confirms the presence of a firearm or weapon under circumstances that place persons at serious risk may confiscate the firearm or weapon immediately and may use such force as is reasonable and necessary to obtain possession. Unless the firearm or weapon has been taken into custody by a law enforcement secure the store any confiscated firearm or weapon in a securely and locked location box or container and report the presence of the firearm or weapon to the Superintendent. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(b), t\(\frac{1}{2}\) the Superintendent shall promptly notify, by telephone call and by letter, local law enforcement the Chief (the municipality; regional districts state "the municipality in which the school district is located") that a firearm or weapon is present on school premises; the notice shall and request removal of the firearm or weapon by an authorized law enforcement official officer. The Superintendent shall obtain and file a receipt for any firearm or weapon removed by a law enforcement official officer. Any student who possesses, uses, or exchanges a firearm or weapon in violation of this Ppolicy shall be subject to stringent discipline, which may include Any student or school employee who suspects or knows of the presence of a firearm or weapon in violation of this Ppolicy and fails to report the same shall be subject to discipline. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3(b), aAny person who possesses a firearm or weapon on school premises or school transportation or at a school-sponsored function shall be reported to the appropriate law enforcement agency.

The Board shall immediately remove a student who is convicted or adjudicated delinquent for possession of a firearm on school grounds; convicted or adjudicated delinquent for committing a crime while in possession of a firearm on school grounds; or found knowingly in possession





OPERATIONS 8467/page 3 of 4 Firearms and Weapons

of a firearm on school grounds from the school's general education program for a period of not less than one calendar year, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.5(a) and Policy and Regulation 5611 – Removal of Students for Firearms Offenses.

Any student who is convicted or is an adjudicated delinquent for possession of a firearm or who is found to be in possession of a firearm on school property must be immediately removed from the regular education program and provided with an alternative program, pending a hearing before the Board of Education. Students convicted or found to be delinquent for possessing a firearm on school property, on a school bus, or at a school sponsored function or committing a crime while possessing a firearm shall be immediately removed from the regular education program for a period of not less than one calendar year and placed in an alternative education school or program pending a hearing before the Board of Education to remove the student. (Chapters 127 and 128 of 1995, The Zero Tolerance for Guns Act)

The Board shall immediately remove a student who commits an assault, as defined under N.J.S.A. 2C:12-1a(1), with a weapon, which includes, but is not limited to, items enumerated in N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(r), except a firearm as defined by N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(f) and 18 USC §921, upon a teacher, administrator, other school board employee, district Board of Education member, or another student on school grounds, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:37-2.2 through 2.5, from the school's general education program for a period not exceeding one calendar year, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.6(a) and (b) and Policy and Regulation 5613 – Removal of Students for Assaults with Weapons Offenses. Any student who commits an assault upon members of the school community with a weapon other than a firearm on school property must be immediately removed from the regular education program and provided with an alternative program, pending a hearing before the Board of Education. (Chapters 127 and 128 of 1995, The Zero Tolerance for Guns Act)

Students with disabilities violating the provisions of this **Ppolicy** shall be addressed dealt with in accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:14-.2.8.

Nothing in this Ppolicy shall be construed to prohibit the reporting of a crime committed by a child with a disability to the appropriate law enforcement or judicial authorities, or to prevent such authorities from exercising their responsibilities with regard to the application of Federal or State law to crimes committed by a child with disabilities.





OPERATIONS 8467/page 4 of 4 Firearms and Weapons

The procedures for Any student requiring removal from and return to the general regular education program of a student for firearms offenses and assaults with weapons offenses for the reasons enumerated above shall be removed in accordance with Policy and Regulation No. 5611 – Removal of Students for Firearms Offenses and Policy and Regulation 5613 – Removal of Students for Assaults with Weapons Offenses.

The Superintendent, or designee, shall prepare regulations to implement this **P**policy for the guidance of school staff in dealing with incidents involving **firearms or** weapons in the school district.

The school district's reporting requirements to law enforcement officials and the handling of firearms and weapons outlined in this Policy and Regulation 8467 and in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-3 and N.J.A.C. 6A:16-4 shall be in addition to any reporting and handling requirements included in the current Memorandum of Agreement Between Education and Law Enforcement Officials.

N.J.S.A. **2C:12-1(a)1;** 2C:39-1-et seq.; 2C:58-6.1; 2C:58-15

N.J.S.A. 18A:6-1; 18A:37-2.2; 18A:37-2.3; 18A:37-2.4; 18A:37-2.5

N.J.S.A. 23:4-16

N.J.A.C. 6A:14-2.8 et seq.; 6A:16-5.5; 6A:16-5.6; 6A:16-6.3; 6A:16-6.4

Chapters 127 and 128 of 1995, The Zero Tolerance for Guns Act

18 U-S-C- 921 20 U-S-C- 1415





REGULATION GUIDE

OPERATIONS R 8467/page 1 of 3 Firearms and Weapons June 24

[See POLICY ALERT No. 233]

R 8467 **FIREARMS AND WEAPONS**

- A. Definitions N.J.A.C. 6A:16-1.3
 - 1. "Weapon" means items enumerated in N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(r), except a firearm as defined by N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(f).
 - 2. "Firearm" means items enumerated in N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(f) and 18 USC §921.
 - 3. "School grounds" means and includes land, portions of land, structures, buildings, and vehicles, when used for the provision of academic or extracurricular programs sponsored by the school district or community provider. School grounds also includes school buses, school-sponsored functions, structures that support the buildings, such as school district wastewater treatment facilities; generating facilities; and other central service facilities including, but not limited to, kitchens and maintenance shops. School grounds also includes other facilities as defined in N.J.A.C. 6A:26-1.2, playgrounds, and recreational places owned by municipalities, private entities, or other individuals during times when the school district has exclusive use of a portion of the land.
- B. Reporting to Law Enforcement N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3
 - 1. Whenever a school employee develops reason to believe a firearm, as defined in N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(f) and 18 USC §921, or other deadly weapon, whether enumerated in N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(r), except a firearm as defined by N.J.S.A. 2C:39-1(f) and 18 USC §921, has unlawfully been brought onto school grounds or a student or other person is in unlawful possession of a firearm or other deadly weapon on or off school grounds, or a student or other person has committed an offense with or while in possession of a firearm on or off school grounds or during school operating hours, the matter shall be reported as soon as possible to the Principal or designee, or in the absence of the Principal or designee, to the staff member responsible at the time of the alleged violation.





REGULATION GUIDE

OPERATIONS R 8467/page 2 of 3 Firearms and Weapons

- a. Either the Principal or designee or the responsible staff member shall notify the Superintendent, who in turn shall notify as soon as possible the county prosecutor or other law enforcement official designated by the county prosecutor to receive such information.
- b. The Superintendent or designee shall provide to the county prosecutor or designee all known information concerning the matter, including the identity of the student or staff member involved.
- c. All incidents shall be reported under N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.3 utilizing the Student Safety Data System, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-5.3(e)1, where appropriate.
- C. Handling of Firearms and Dangerous Weapons N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.4
 - 1. In accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.4(b), whenever a school employee seizes or comes upon a firearm or dangerous weapon, school officials shall:
 - a. In the case of a firearm, immediately advise the county prosecutor or appropriate law enforcement official, and secure the firearm pending the response by law enforcement to retrieve and take custody of the firearm; and
 - b. In the case of a dangerous weapon other than a firearm, immediately advise the county prosecutor or appropriate law enforcement official, and secure the dangerous weapon pending the response by law enforcement to retrieve and take custody of the dangerous weapon.
 - 2. School employees in custody of a firearm or dangerous weapon shall take reasonable precautions, according to Board procedures, to prevent the theft, destruction, or unlawful use of the firearm or dangerous weapon by any person, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:16-6.4(c).





REGULATION GUIDE

OPERATIONS R 8467/page 3 of 3 Firearms and Weapons

- a. The Principal shall place the firearm or dangerous weapon in a secure and locked location.
- b. In the event any person other than the Principal is permitted access to the firearm or dangerous weapon prior to its retrieval by a law enforcement official, that person shall enter their name and signature on the record along with the time and date of inspection and the reason for the access. Access to the firearm or dangerous weapon will be permitted only in the presence of the Principal.
- c. The law enforcement official who takes custody of the firearm or dangerous weapon shall be required to sign and date the record to indicate their receipt of the firearm or dangerous weapon.
- 3. The Principal shall provide to the law enforcement official who takes custody of the firearm or dangerous weapon:
 - a. All information concerning the manner in which the firearm or dangerous weapon was confiscated;
 - b. The identity of all persons who had custody of the firearm or dangerous weapon following its confiscation; and
 - c. The identity of any student or staff member believed to have been in possession of the firearm or dangerous weapon.
- 4. Any person employed or engaged in a school or educational institution may, within the scope of their employment, use and apply such amounts of force as is reasonable or necessary to obtain possession of weapons or other dangerous objects upon the person or within the control of a student, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:6-1.

Adopted Issued:





COMMUNITY 9181/page 1 of 3 Volunteer Athletic Coaches and Co-Curricular Activity Advisors/Assistants June 24

[See POLICY ALERT Nos. 195 and 233]

9181 <u>VOLUNTEER ATHLETIC COACHES AND CO-CURRICULAR</u> ACTIVITY ADVISORS/ASSISTANTS

The Board of Education recognizes the services of volunteer athletic coaches and co-curricular activity advisors/assistants bring unique skills to the district, enrich the athletic and co-curricular program, assist district coaching and co-curricular staff members in the performance of their duties, and enhance the relationship between the school district and the community. Therefore, the Board authorizes a program for the utilization of volunteer athletic coaches and co-curricular activity advisors/assistants in the district.

For the purposes of this Policy, "volunteer athletic coach and co-curricular activity advisor/assistant" is a person who is not paid by the Board of Education, assisting under the direct supervision of an appropriately certified or licensed school district employee, and provides assistance for the school activity.

The **Superintendent of Schools or designee** ______ will be responsible for the recruitment and screening of volunteer athletic coaches and co-curricular activity advisors/assistants and their assignment. The district is not obligated to utilize the proffered services of a volunteer whose abilities or interests do not serve the needs of the school district as determined by the Superintendent.

These volunteers must be persons of known character, responsibility, and integrity and must be recommended by the Superintendent and approved by the Board of Education prior to assuming any responsibilities.

The **Superintendent or designee** ______ will prepare and promulgate rules of conduct for volunteer athletic coaches and volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants. Each volunteer athletic coach and co-curricular activity advisor/assistant will be given a copy of this Policy.

The following guidelines shall govern the service of a volunteer athletic coach and volunteer co-curricular activity advisor/assistant:

1. Volunteer athletic coaches and volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants may serve only under the direction and **direct** immediate supervision of **an appropriately certified or licensed** a head and/or assistant coach or activity advisor or assistant employed by the Board;





COMMUNITY 9181/page 2 of 3 Volunteer Athletic Coaches and Co-Curricular Activity Advisors/Assistants

- 2. Volunteer athletic coaches and volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants must clearly understand their duties and responsibilities and perform no services outside those duties;
- 3. Volunteer athletic coaches and volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants serve only in a support capacity and only head or assistant coaches or activity advisors or assistants employed by the Board are responsible for the supervision and instruction provided to students participating in athletic programs or co-curricular activities;
- 4. Volunteer athletic coaches and volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants shall respect the individuality, dignity, and worth of each student:
- 5. Volunteer athletic coaches and volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants are not permitted access to student records;
- 6. Volunteer athletic coaches and volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants must **not disclose** exercise discretion in disclosing any confidential student matters the **volunteer athletic** coach or **volunteer** activity advisor/assistant or assistant employed by the Board becomes aware of as a result of their volunteer responsibilities;
- 7. Volunteer athletic coaches and volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants shall must consult with the Superintendent or designee ______ regarding any matters or questions regarding their duties and responsibilities;
- 8. Volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants must consult with the _____ regarding any matters or questions regarding their duties and responsibilities;
- 89. Volunteer athletic coaches and **volunteer** co-curricular activity advisors/assistants shall receive no financial remuneration from the Board; and





COMMUNITY 9181/page 3 of 3 Volunteer Athletic Coaches and Co-Curricular Activity Advisors/Assistants

910. Volunteer athletic coaches and volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants may be immediately relieved of their volunteer responsibilities, with or without cause, by the Superintendent with such action to be recommended to the Board by the Superintendent at the next Board mMeeting following relief of duties.

Volunteer athletic coaches and volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants will be screened for tuberculosis in accordance with the current New Jersey Department of Health Guidance for Tuberculosis (TB) Testing in New Jersey Schools.

Volunteer athletic coaches and volunteer co-curricular activity advisors/assistants will be required to participate in all mandated trainings required for their position and any other trainings as required by the Superintendent or designee.

All school volunteer athletic coaches and co-curricular activity advisors/assistants must obtain a criminal history record check to be reimbursed by the Board and must be approved by the Board.

N.J.S.A. 18A:6-7.1; 18A:6-7.2

